Wiltshire Council

—————

AGENDA

Meeting: Health and Wellbeing Board

Place: Kennet Room - County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge,
BA14 8JN

Date: Thursday 26 January 2023

Time: 9.30 am

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Ben Fielding of Democratic and Members’
Services, County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718221 or email
benjamin.fieldingi@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct line (01225) 713114/713115.

This agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Voting Membership:
Alan Mitchell Chair of Healthwatch Wiltshire

ClIr Richard Clewer (Chairman) Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Climate Change, MCI,
Economic Development, Heritage,
Arts, Tourism and Health & Wellbeing

Christina Button NHS England
Clir lan Blair-Pilling Cabinet Member for Public Health
and Public Protection, Leisure,

Libraries, Facilities Management and
Operational Assets

Clir Jane Davies Cabinet Member for Adult Social
Care, SEND, Transition and Inclusion
Dr Sam Dominey Wiltshire Locality Healthcare

Professional, NHS Bath and North
East Somerset, Swindon and
Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)
Cllr Gordon King Opposition Group Representative
Cllr Laura Mayes Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member

for Children's Services, Education
and Skills


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

Dr Nick Ware

Dr Catrinel Wright

Fiona Slevin-Brown

Non-Voting Membership:
Kate Blackburn

Dr Edd Rendell

Dr Andy Purbrick

Tracey Cox

Tony Fox

Nicola Hazle
Terence Herbert

Stacey Hunter

Stephen Ladyman / Douglas Blair
Kevin Mchamara

Clare O'Farrell
Kier Pritchard
Alison Ryan
Val Scrase
Lucy Townsend
Clare Edgar
Marc House

Sarah Cardy

Page 2

Wiltshire Locality Healthcare
Professional, NHS Bath and North
East Somerset, Swindon and
Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Wiltshire Locality Healthcare
Professional, NHS Bath and North
East Somerset, Swindon and
Wiltshire Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Place Director — Wiltshire, NHS Bath
and North East Somerset, Swindon
and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board
(ICB)

Director - Public Health (DPS)
Wessex Local Medical Committee
Wessex Local Medical Committee
Chief Officer/Chief Finance Officer -
ICB

Non-Executive Director - South West
Ambulance Service Trust

Clinical Director

Chief Executive (ERO/RO/Head of
Paid Service)

Chief Executive or Chairman Bath
RUH

Wiltshire Health and Care

Chief Executive or Chairman Great
Western Hospital

Interim Director of Commissioning
Wiltshire Police Chief Constable

RUH Bath NHS Foundation Trust
Managing Director, Virgin Care
Corporate Director - People (DCS)
Director Wholelife Pathway/ DASS
Dorset and Wiltshire Fire & Rescue
Service - Area Manager Swindon and
Wiltshire

VCSE Leadership
Representative

Alliance



Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes
within the Council.

By submitting a statement or question for an online meeting you are consenting that you
will be recorded presenting this and will be available on the public record. The meeting
may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.

Parking

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most
meetings will be held are as follows:

County Hall, Trowbridge
Bourne Hill, Salisbury
Monkton Park, Chippenham

County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer,
who will arrange for your stay to be extended.

Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of
guestions and statements for this meeting.

For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution.

The full constitution can be found at this link.

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for
details

Page 3


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0

AGENDA

Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements

The Chairman will welcome those present to the meeting. In addition, the
following announcements will be made:

Apologies for Absence
To receive any apologies for absence.

Minutes (Pages 7 - 14)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2022.
Declarations of Interest

To declare any personal or prejudicial interests or dispensations granted by the
Standards Committee.

Public Participation

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.

Statements

If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 3
speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item.
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further
clarification.

Questions

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council
received in accordance with the constitution.

Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than
5pm on Thursday 19 January in order to be guaranteed of a written response.
In order to receive a verbal response, questions must be submitted no later than
5pm on Monday 23 January. Please contact the officer named on the front of
this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the
Chairman decides that the matter is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.

Integrated Care Strategy Update (Pages 15 - 78)

To receive an update on the Integrated Care Strategy.

Page 4



10

11

12

13

Draft Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy for consultation (Pages 79
- 100)

To discuss the draft Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Integrated Care Alliance Work Programme (Pages 101 - 112)

To receive an update on the Integrated Care Alliance Work Programme.

Better Care Plan (Pages 113 - 120)

To receive an update on the use of additional discharge funding.

Military Covenant (Pages 121 - 140)

To discuss the Military Covenant and implications of statutory guidance for
health and care.

Workforce Health Campaign (Pages 141 - 148)

To receive an update on the Workforce Health Campaign and the results of
activity taken by local organisations 12 months on.

Date of Next Meeting
The next meeting is being held on 30 March 2023, starting at 9.30am.
Urgent Items

Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider as a matter
of urgency.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Wilishire Council

—————

Health and Wellbeing Board

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD ON 8
SEPTEMBER 2022 AT KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD,
TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN.

Present:
ClIr Richard Clewer (Chairman) Alan Mitchell, ClIr lan Blair-Pilling, Clir Jane Davies,
Clir Laura Mayes, Fiona Selvin-Brown, Rob Llewellyn

Also Present:

Dr Edd Rendell, Dr Andy Purbick, Nicola Hazle, Terence Herbert, Stephen Ladyman,
Val Scrase, Lucy Townsend, David Bowater, Ben Fielding, Michael Rose, Sammer
Tang, Michael Allum, Amanda Du Cros, Robert Holman, Catharine Symington,
Emma Higgins, Gemma Brinn, Rachel Kent, Clare Thompson, Emma Legg, Lynn
Gibson

48 Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements

Clir Richard Clewer, Chair of the Board welcomed everybody to the meeting.

Before the meeting began each Member of the Board, other Councillors and
officers who would be contributing to the meeting were given the opportunity to
introduce themselves.

Clir Richard Clewer provided the following Chairman’s Announcements:
e Health and Wellbeing Board Membership

The Chairman drew attention to the Health and Wellbeing Board composition
paper within the agenda, as well as a proposed revision which would aim to
ensure ongoing parity between council and NHS representatives by reducing
the numbers of voting representatives required. It was also stated that the
proposed revision would take account of the need to include a representative
from the Voluntary and Community Sector, reflecting discussions at the Health
and Wellbeing Board earlier this year, as well as the development of the VCS
forum in the county.

The Board stated that they would support the changes and the Chairman
informed that further discussion would be required at the Council’s Constitution
Focus Group as well as ratification of the changes at a subsequent meeting of
full council.

e BSW Inequalities

The Chairman drew attention to the BSW Inequalities Strategy, with it noted that

Page 7



49

50

51

52

53

in March 2022, the Health and Wellbeing Board noted the development of the
BSW Inequalities Strategy 2021-202 and its development in consultation with

health and social care partners across the Wiltshire Alliance. The strategy had
now been finalised and published, alongside its implementation plan.

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Alison Ryan, Cara Charles-Barks,
Philip Wilkinson, Clir Nick Holder, Clare O’Farrell, Louise Greenwood, Laura
Edwards, Julie Thornley, Dawn Chalcraft, Will Howard, Lisa Taylor, Lisa
Harding, Marc House, Michelle Lombardi, Clare Edgar, Amber Skyring, Kate
Blackburn, Helen Jones, Stacey Hunter, Dr Sam Dominey, Stephanie Elsy, Dr
Andrew Girdher, Laura Nicholas, Margaret Firth, Dr Catrinel Wright and Sue
Harriman.

It was noted that Philip Wilkinson (Police and Crime Commissioner for Wiltshire
and Swindon) had arranged for Rob Llewellyn (Director of Ops) to attend in his
place. In addition, Clir Gordon King joined the meeting in a Hybrid capacity via
Microsoft Teams.

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 31 March 2022 were presented for
consideration.

Decision - The minutes of the meeting held on 31 March 2022 were agreed
as a correct record.

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

Public Participation

There were no questions raised by members of the Public to be answered at
this meeting.

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment development and JHWS refresh

The Board received a presentation from Rachel Kent (Public Health Consultant,
Wiltshire Council) . The item covered the following matters:

e An update was provided that the 8" edition of the JSNA is currently being
written, with the aim of publication in October.

e Due to the timing, it was requested that sign off for the JSNA to be
delegated to the Chair in order to enable findings to be fed into the
development of the Integrated Care Strategy and local health planning as
soon as possible.

e Attention was drawn to the slides which had been circulated in order to
provide context.

Page 8



e |t was suggested that there could be a future workshop based around the
JSNA.

Comments were received in relation to the importance of the strategy being
organic in order for it to adapt to changes in circumstances. The impact of the
JSNA from a Council perspective was cited, with it noted that the strategy
allows Area Boards to understand specific issues in tightly defined areas and
then be able to shift resources to act.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the timeframe to
produce the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing JSNA.

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to delegate sign
off for the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing JSNA to the chair, in
consultation with the Director of Public Health and partners
within the NHS.

iii) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted that the Wiltshire
Health and Wellbeing JSNA will be a key document in guiding
the Board’s work and supporting the development and delivery
of the Wiltshire Joint Health and Wellbeing strategy in tandem
with a new Integrated Care Strategy for BSW.

iv) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board agreed that its next
meeting on 1 December would focus on the findings of the JSNA
and developing the JHWS and Integrated Care Strategy.

54 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment finalisation

The Board received a presentation from Sammer Tang (Public Health Speciality
Registrar, Wiltshire Council). The item covered the following matters:

e The statutory consultation for the PNA took place after the Health and
Wellbeing Board endorsed the draft in March 2022. All statutory
consultees agreed upon the recommendations and conclusion of the
draft PNA.

e |t was stated that the Commissioner of Community Pharmacy Services
would be visiting the Integrated Care Board in the new year and would
therefore be a big opportunity to include pharmacies.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the summary of
findings from the statutory consultation process.

i) Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to approve and
publish the most up-to-date version of the Wiltshire
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment.

iii) Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to continue to monitor
the future changes of the pharmaceutical needs of Wiltshire

Page 9



population and publish additional statement and/or commission
a new Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment as required.

55 Health Protection Strategy 2022-2026

The Board received a presentation from Michael Allum (Acting Public Health
Consultant, Wiltshire Council). The item covered the following matters:

e |t was outlined that a Health Protection Assurance Group had been set
up to take strategic lead for Health Protection, with the purpose of the
strategy to build upon previous work conducted by the group.

e Key topics of work that had bene agreed for 2022-2026 were outlined to
the Health and Wellbeing Board as well as further objectives based upon
local data and requirements.

e The strategy has the aim of ensuring that relationships formed within the
pandemic continue to grow as well as providing assurance of the
different processes involved.

Comments were received in relation to why Abdominal Aortic Screening had
been identified as being a medium-term priority, to which it was clarified that
Cancer programmes would be the first initial term focus. In addition, it was
recognised that there is room to improve regarding uptake and that there are
ways in which communication can be used to connect with communities to
improve this. A further comment was made in regard to how a number of the
screening elements would be reliant on NHS capacity and ability to deal with
pressures. It was stated that though this would be outside of the Health
Protection Assurance Group, there would be reporting pathways to potentially
address this and that work is being done to raise Cancer Screening rates to
back to where they were pre-Covid by targeting the most appropriate people.

In regard to the environmental element of the report, it was stated that the
Health Protection Assurance Group and Public Protection team have processes
in place with a range of stake holders to raise issues regarding water and air
quality. It was stressed that it would be important to gain assurance that the
correct monitoring is take place, especially within the planning system.

It was queried why mental health trusts were not listed within the report, to
which it was clarified that the author would be happy to add more partners to
the work. A further point for discussion was made in regard to infection disease
control and anti-vaccination stickers which had been placed on signposts within
the Wiltshire locality and whether this was still an underlying problem. It was
clarified that there has been an increased discourse online including the positive
outcome of the Covid vaccines and that the NHS and partners would hopefully
have the correct tools and relationships to address such concerns.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted and acknowledged
the Wiltshire Health Protection Strategy 2022- 2026 document

Page 10



56

(see appendix 1) and would support the priorities set out in the
document.

Integrated Care Alliance work programme update

The Board received an update from Emma Higgins (Associate Director, NHS
Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board
(ICB)).The item covered the following matters:

e |t was stated that the paper attached to the agenda set out the journey of
the alliance programme and the shared work programme over the past
18 months.

e Despite issues, progress has been made on the work programme, which
started in April 2022, with work continuing on mandated development
and the way which the ICA wants to work with population health and
connection with communities.

e A neighbourhood collaboratives programme is ready to be launched,
which will support neighbourhoods to come together and consider their
population gaps.

e |t was stated that the ICA ambition for the 2023 work programme is to be
led by population health and wellbeing inequality gaps.

e Dated milestones were provided for the 2023-2024 work programme.

Positive feedback was received in regard to the programme having a
neighbourhood focus, with it stated that there has been emphasis from Wiltshire
Council to have a focus on inequality within neighbourhoods; including work
with partners in Studley Green and Bemerton Heath. The importance of
mapping community assets and assets were discussed along with how
communities are understood and defined, with each neighbourhood potentially
formulating themselves differently.

It was questioned how the work would link with the Fuller stocktake report and
that initial conversations had taken place with PCNs, with outline agreements
with two PCNs in Salisbury as well as one each in Devizes and Trowbridge,
with these different areas picked for a reason. These areas would be initially
piloted and tested in order to recognise that each neighbourhood is different
and to understand what does and does not work. Furthermore, a development
day took place in March to identify key areas that each neighbourhood wants to
consider as well as ensuring there are the right foundations for collaboration.
Though it was stated that resource would potentially be a challenge, it was
stated that the work could potentially be something for Board partners to get
involved in.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the content of the
paper.

Page 11


https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/next-steps-for-integrating-primary-care-fuller-stocktake-report/

57

58

Better Care Fund - year end return and framework for intermediate care
and capacity plans over winter

The Board received a presentation from Melanie Nicolau (Head of Resources
Commissioning, Wiltshire Council). The item covered the following matters:

e |t was stated that attached to the agenda was a paper to formally bring
the end of year submission of the Better Care Fund to the Health and
Wellbeing Board as part of government arrangements.

e The Better Care Fund Plan for 2022-2023 is still in development and
would need to be submitted in September. This would act as an enabler
for work from the alliance and would be a main vehicle for prevention,
admission, hospital discharge and rapid response services.

e Aot of consultation had taken place with communities and stakeholders,
with the results tied together within the report.

Comments were received in relation to page 177 of the agenda pack, which
stated that the number of external providers for homecare went down. In
response it was suggested that this was due to there not being people available
to provide homecare, in addition to a number of variables such as Covid
increasing complexity with hospital discharge and a reduction in beds at the
point of discharge. In addition, it was question that on page 161, the income
was stated as being £57.5million, however the spend was just under £50million.
This was clarified as being down to using the hospital discharge fund which was
received from central government and that the £7.5million that was not spent
would not need to be given back.

Further comments included, but were not limited to, that through scrutiny the
council had been looking at the disabilities grant and how homes should be
more adaptable. Additionally, the need to ensure that in planning policy housing
standards involve new homes being capable of being adaptable.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the end of year
BCF submission 21/22.

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board approved the delegated
sign-off of the Better Care Fund Plan to the Chair.

Wiltshire Autism Strategy development

The Board received a presentation from Robert Holman (Commissioning
Manager, Wiltshire Council). The item covered the following matters:

¢ It was stated that the Wiltshire Autism Strategy would be the first all age

strategy and would emphasise a whole-life approach, whilst echoing the
four areas of the Health and Wellbeing and SEND strategies.

Page 12



59

e The strategy is a product of significant co-production and engagement,
including the voices of autistic people, their families and the local mental
health and autism group.

e The six priorities of the strategy were outlined within the attached report.

e |t was stated that for the first six months the Wiltshire Locality Mental
Health and Autism Group would be responsible for implementation
before handing over to the Wiltshire Autism Partnership in the new year.

Comments were received in relation to how the strategy was positive from a
Councillor perspective, having seen gaps within case work. Additionally, it was
voiced that members were pleased that the strategy was whole life. It was also
clarified that in regard to co-production, the Wiltshire Parent Council had been
consulted. Further clarification was provided that there would be a timeline for
the implementation plan, with a lot of work happening already. Additionally, a
plea was made to the authors to capture what elements of co-production
worked well as this would allow others to learn going forward.

It was stated that transitions are a key area within services and that this would
be an area that would be considered within the initial proposal, however there
would be a lot of people who would not be known to social care, due to there
being a wide spectrum. Praise was also received for the strategy from a mental
health perspective, in the way that it linked in with inpatient units as well as
referring to the community mental health framework.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board approved and signed off
the Wiltshire joint all-age autism strategy 2022-27.

ii) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the governance
arrangements for its implementation.

iii) A report would be brought back to the Wiltshire Health and
Wellbeing Board in 12-months’ time.

Healthwatch Wiltshire Annual Report

The Board received a presentation from Catharine Symington (Interim Manager,
Healthwatch Wiltshire).The item covered the following matters:

¢ It was stated that Healthwatch Wiltshire had published 12 reports about
the changes people would like made to health and social care services
as well as 78 recommendations for improvement.

e Over the past year Healthwatch had supported 4,426 people to share
their experiences of health and social care services as well as having
had 7,141 people come to them for clear advice.

e Projects that took place included making changes to the service offered
at the Emergency Department and inpatient wards at the Great Western
Hospital, Swindon; helping to develop mental health services; improving

Page 13



60

61

information about the new Devizes Health Centre as well as community
projects.

¢ Healthwatch Wiltshire’s priorities for 2022-2023 were identified within the
attached report.

Comments were received in relation to how it was positive to see the voice of
young people referenced a lot more, interwoven and included as part of
Healthwatch. Additionally, multiple Health and Wellbeing Board members
praised and showed gratitude for the work of Healthwatch, in particular the work
towards the Great Western Hospital and for community mental health.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the key
messages from the report.

ii) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board confirmed its
commitment to listening to the voice of local people to influence
commissioning and service provision.

Date of Next Meeting

It was agreed that the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board would be
on 1 December 2022, starting at 09.30am.

Urgent ltems

There were no urgent items.
(Duration of meeting: 09:30am — 11.05pm)
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Ben Fielding of Democratic

Services, direct line 01225 718656, e-mail benjamin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 14


mailto:benjamin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 6

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

26t January 2023

Integrated Care Strategy - Update

Executive summary

The purpose of this paper is to update the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board, as
an Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) stakeholder, on the progress and process of
producing the Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW)
Integrated Care Strategy. This includes information on the emergent themes coming
through on the strategy and details on the opportunity to review and comment on the
draft version.

Proposal

All Integrated Care Partnerships are developing a 5 Year Integrated Care Strategy as
required by the Health and Care Act. The strategy describes how all partnership
members are working together to meet the assessed health, care and wellbeing
needs of the local population. In generating a Strategy that covers all of BSW we are
trying to distil the essence of each of the local Health and Wellbeing Strategies being
developed in each Place combined with the strategic direction that partners in BSW
have previously agreed. The Strategy will be updated annually to ensure it remains
relevant to the requirements of the local population.

The strategy will be completed and agreed by the ICP by the end of March 2023 and
this will include a series of engagement activities to work with, and take account of
the views of, stakeholders and the local population.

Engagement in each of the three Places within BSW will be coordinated by the local
Integrated Care Alliances. This is important as, with the local Health and Wellbeing
Strategies also under development there is a risk that we could generate duplicate or
confusing requests to the local population for their involvement in the development of
strategies.

There is also a requirement for all Integrated Care Boards (ICB) to own and develop
a five-year system delivery plan (Joint Forward Plan) setting out how we will
implement the Integrated Care Strategy. This implementation plan is being developed
alongside the Strategy and will describe in greater detail the actions being taken to
deliver parts of the strategy over the next 12 months.

There is a requirement to consult with Health and Wellbeing Boards on how well this
implementation plan reflects the requirements of the Joint Local Health and
Wellbeing Strategies. The completion date for the Implementation Plan has been
extended to 30" June 2023 with a draft being produced at the end of March. This
plan will also be updated annually.

Page 15



The process of producing the submission is being co-ordinated by the Integrated
Care Strategy & Implementation Plan Steering Group which has a membership taken
from the ICB and wider system partners. The Steering Group is meeting fortnightly.
We are currently working through the governance timetable with regards sign-off of
the completed strategy and plan ahead of the respective milestones.

The current draft of the Strategy is in the process of being generated and will be
circulated for review in the week beginning 16" January.

The committee:

a) are asked to consider the content of the attached report (presented as slides)
and to advise on how engagement in the ongoing development of the initial
Strategy and subsequent plan can best be undertaken within Wiltshire.

b) Committee members are encouraged to review the draft strategy following its
distribution and to provide feedback through the channels provided. A
particular question to consider is how consistent the BSW wide strategy is with
the local Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Reason for proposal

The requirement to generate a combined Integrated Care Strategy for BSW is a
requirement set out in the Health and Care Act 2022.

Author:

Contact details: Richard Smale
Director of Strategy and Transformation, BSW Integrated Care Board
Email: r.smale@nhs.net

Page 16




Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Integrated Care Strategy Update

Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board

26" January 2023



Integrated Care Strategy update

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

There are three products that we are going to produce:

 Integrated Care Strategy — “the Strategy” (by 315t March 2023)
 Owned and developed by the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP)

* Integrated Care Implementation Plan - “the Plan” (by 30" June 2023)
 Owned and developed by the Integrated Care Board (ICB)
* We will consult with our 3 Health & Wellbeing Boards and system partners
* We will write this as the implementation plan for our Strategy

e This will meet the minimum requirements of the Joint Forward Plan that NHSE will ask
us to produce, so we will submit this as our Joint Forward Plan

» Operating Plan 23/24 (by 31st March 2023)

» Setting out our system plan key metrics for submission to NHSE

8T abed

NHS organisations will also be producing their annual Operational Plans and the
ICB will submit a summary of these.



Integrated Care Strategy update

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

There is an important relationship between the Integrated Care Strategy, which
sets the direction (why & what) and the Joint Forward Plan, which defines how
elements of the strategy will be delivered.

NHS Priorities & operational
IMI NHS Mandate H England Long Term Plan planning guidance

6T obed

+

Integrated I
Care Integrated care strategy Integrated Operational plan returns Joint forward plan
Partnership

Care

—
Joint strategic needs

Health and assessments

Wellbeing

Bonrds Joint local health and

wellbeing strategies




Integrated Care Strategy update

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

An engagement event was held on the 16" December to inform the development of the Strategy

More than 60 attendees from across BSW.
The extensive feedback that was gathered is being processed and

“Just a quick line to say | found the

°g
) ] event very useful. Thanks to you
‘c% reviewed and the team for all the work that
& A draft strategy has been developed from this. clearly went into it.”
* An engagement plan is being developed for the period Jan — March R

2023 to ensure the draft Strategy is discussed by partners across Local Leadership Board Chair

Healthwatch

BSW.
« A workshop will be organised for members of the Integrated Care

Partnership to specifically review the system priorities and outcomes
that we are working towards.




l Bath and North East Somerset, Integrated Care Strategy update

Swindon and Wiltshire Together

Outline content

Content required . petal

1. Evidence base for population need A summary of what the current evidence from across BSW is telling us —
JSNAs, PHM, other data.
2. What is important to us? Feedback from previous engagement processes. How are we learning from
o previous case reviews/findings?
%3. Desired Improvement Outcomes What improvements in outcomes are we aiming to deliver and what output
= measures will we collect to demonstrate progress?
H4. Key principles on which our strategy is based. What principles will underpin our approach?
5. Key initiatives for the delivery of our strategy What transformation initiatives are we proposing to undertake? What are we
already undertaking and are they still relevant?
6. How will this impact on the flow of resources within How do we expect to spend our resources differently in future?

the system?

A first draft of the BSW Integrated Care Strategy has been developed and is being circulated for
comments from the week of 16" January. Feedback from members of the Wiltshire Health and
Wellbeing Board would be welcome.



BSW Integrated Care Strategy & Plan Governance timeline

Generate 1st draft PSIhar/eO1 - dr_aft ?tratsetgytvia Generate 2nd 2 draft reviews — ICP, Health
ace/rganisation strategy Draft Strategy and Wellbeing Boards, Integrated

Strategy
(13t January) Leg%?hfg;;erﬁgsyafk (17" February) Care Alliances (17" March)

INTEGRATED
CARE STRATEGY
FINAL (0[1/04/23)

IP ICSIPSG BaNES Health
BaNESS SZG - ICSIPSG  IMPLEMENTATION ICSIPSG  gyinqon Healthog/03/23) CsIPSe & Wellbeing

.- BSW ICE Integratet? Gdyt/23iltshire (08/02/23)  PLANDRAFT  (22/02/23) & Wellbeing (22/03/23) i

& Board Alliance ealth & SUBMISSION Board (28/02/23) (28/ 2723)

QRoyal United | (12/01/23)  (19/01/23) ellbeing (13/02/23)

Hospitals
N Bath
(11/01/23)
. , EGRATED
1 Jan 1 Feb CARGr 1 Apr
PARTNERSHIP
IC Strategy & (28/02/23)
Implementation
Plan Steering Great BaNES Health BaNES
BaNES ; ;
: Wiltshire Health
SIS | BEE e mesrted " Wetweing
2 4,%?;23) Alliance ICSIP$G wil}egntinuederteat/fortiightly between
Salisbury Hospital (12/01/23) April and June 2023 to co-ordinate completion of
iy ek Avon and the Implementation Plan and complete
Wiltshire Mental consultation on the Plan with partners and
Health stakeholders
Partnership

Implementation Integrated Care Health &

Hospital Trusts Wellbeing

Plan )
Alliance Board

submissions
Note: Awaiting further board dates, this timeline will be updated (ICP meetings, ICA meetings etc. )




Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire
Draft Integrated Care Strategy — Briefing pack

cz abe

Integrated Care Partnership
January 2023
Verl.0 (draft)



Integrated Care Strategy update

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Purpose of these slides

The purpose of these slides is to provide further information about the draft BSW Integrated Care Strategy and how to
;provide feedback to inform its further development.
Q

¢ o



Integrated Care Strategy update

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Strategy & Planning

As partners across BSW there are three key documents that we have to produce:

 Integrated Care Strategy — “the Strategy” (by 315t March 2023)
» Developed by the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP)

* Integrated Care Implementation Plan — “the Plan” (by 30t June 2023)
« Developed by the Integrated Care Board (ICB)

* Operating Plan 23/24 (by 315t March 2023)
« Setting out our system plan key metrics for submission to NHSE

Gz obed

Individual NHS organisations will also be producing their annual Operational Plans
and the ICB will submit a summary of these.



l Bath and North East Somerset, Integra‘ted Care Strategy update

Swindon and Wiltshire Together

What is our BSW Integrated Care Strategy

Tells the story of how we are working together across BSW to
improve the health and wellbeing of the local population, to tackle
the health inequalities that exist and to deliver better services..

.9z obed .

Brings together elements from individual strategies that exist
across our health and care system

Enabling strategies
* Not intended to duplicate or replace these other strategies, but to _

provide a summary of how these different elements operate
together.




Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

Relationship with local Health and Wellbeing Strategies

Our BSW Strategy is being developed at the same time that local Health and Wellbeing Strategies are being developed for
each Health and Wellbeing Board.

Bath & North East Somerset Initial draft generated & priorities identified Becky Reynolds
o Public survey undertaken Fedalia Richardson
% Nancy Towers
l:lﬁwindon Development of draft underway Steve Maddern (DPH)
Wiltshire Initial draft generated includes draft priorities Kate Blackburn (DPH)
Public survey planned David Bowater
BSW Initial draft generated Richard Smale
Further work ongoing on: David Jobbins
« alignment with local strategies William Pett (from 23/1/23)

* enabling activities
* Impact on resources



Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

Relationship with local Health and Wellbeing Strategies

There is a lot of consistency in the themes

that are emerging across BSW. ~ _ . gyl
o — ) J{@o@@@
4
Themes > > o iy (e
Qur surroundings The food we ea ysical Environment ﬁ"
Tackle inequality g ﬁ& t &

[n-3-3
©

Health Behaviors

Q)
«Q
. 'r_
§ Focus on the individual Meney and Transpor m> . . @ .

All age (start well, live well, age well)

oF

3
09

858 re
ality of Care

* Wider determinants of health
* Deve I 0 p me nt Of commun Itl €s Comprehensive Personalised Care Model
° Stre ngthS based app rOaCh All age, whole population approach to Personalised Care T SR

TARGET POPULATIONS

« Environmental impact rervermons ourcones

et hose
. . — [ P =
* Prevention and wellbeing ousin A\ Families, fiends @22 salth Care ]:::m
9 and communities m
Source: Institute for Clinical Systems Improvement, Going Beyond Clinical Walls: Solving Complex Problems (October 2014)




Relationship with local Health and Wellbeing Strategies

Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

Neighbourhoo

Neighbourhood Collaborative Model ____Collaborative

There are some common themes in the priorities that are being identified across BSW: B e

Emergent priorities in the B&NES
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Ensure that children and young people are healthy and ready
for learning and education
Improve skills, good work and employment
Strengthen compassionate and healthy communities
Creating health promoting places

Keeping active at home an Be Active support from Live

= T
’ |
.

A W DN

Emergent priorities in the Wiltshire
Health and Wellbeing strategy

Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities
Prevention and early intervention

Localisation and connecting with communities
Integration and working together

Well Swindon

1. The Home Setting 2. Early Identification and Prevention 3. Tackling Root Causes

The ‘home’ plays a key role in enabling Focus on children, working across Tackling root-causes and addressing causal
people to achieve good health and wellbeing. ‘whole’ family interventions factors; not just focusing on the symptoms

Symptoms
. | € result or outcome of
t robler

A\
=N A Lifecourse
/0 \a_f_}
N [’J_\:ﬂ pof ]
| —BUR Diverting people from statutory or )
o oo formal services through local, “The Roogs" = systen below
& 2 3 the surface bringing about the]
A flexible, community solutions problem (not always obvious)

Couses

+ Improved physical health, as well as « Reducing long-term health effects from * Reduce risk of frequent and multiple

better mental health and well being exposures of direct/in-direct harms on young contacts to services/agencies

« Better social interactions and inclusions people * Reduced victimisation

* Better access to services and « Increasing resilience of our whole population « Improved health and wellbeing realised
opportunities - Reducing social isolation and loneliness earlier

+ Improved health and wellbeing




Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

P

Working together to empower people to lead their best life
Starting well > Living well > Ageing well > Dying well

Relationship with local Health and Wellbeing Strategies mﬁé% Mmyicr .

In aligning the local and BSW wide strategies we have identified some differences
in the focus on specific topics. For example in the BSW strategy:

)S)‘\S‘)a"\(‘}

Community diagnostic

‘Whole life’ — will include a focus on end of life. centres

(@)=
B

Whole care model — need to consider how we will deliver improvements in
elective care, urgent and emergency care and change the way services

« OF obed -

Outline some of the system wide service changes that partners are working on
(e.g. Community Services, Virtual Wards, Community Diagnostic Centres)

« Strong focus on the recruitment, development and retention of a sustainable
workforce

STARTING WELL

UNIVERSAL AND EARLY HELP SUPPORT

* Focus on enabling elements like digital and estates

« Outline our work on how we will get the most from the resources we have

acrosssw.~. &
8 Community Services Programme i+
u NeEps T TTTTTTTTITT ‘

Focussed period of co-design for each bundle Jan-Feb 2023.




T¢ obed

{{ What difference are we trying to make?

Integrated Care System Priorities

Reduce the inequalities that
exists in outcomes for the
population of BSW

Improve access BSW

to services

priorities

Create sustainable services
and focus on the wellbeing of
those who deliver services.

Provide continuity of care for those
living with complex health and care
needs and long term conditions.



2¢ obed

{{ What difference are we trying to make?

Start well
0-25
years

Live well
25-64
years

Age well
+64 years

Whole life
outcomes
for the
population
of BSW

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

1.
2.
3.

1.
2.
3.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

I am a healthy baby and child
I am ready for school
| am safe and live in a caring environment

| am active and healthy
| can cope with life, feel safe and know how to seek help
I have life and career aspirations

| can lead a healthy lifestyle in a good environment
| feel | have control over my daily life
I am happy and have a good quality of life

I lead an independent life
| am active and feel safe
| can access services if | need them

Each person is seen as an individual
Each person gets fair access to care
Maximising comfort and wellbeing
Care is coordinated

All staff are prepared to care

Each community is prepared to help.

Raise the healthy life expectancy for our whole population
To reduce the gap in healthy life expectancy between
different areas by a minimum of 50%

Reduce the prevalence and impact of poverty within BSW
Improve wellbeing and reduce the prevalence of mental
health conditions within the population of BSW.

Reduce early deaths from preventable diseases

Based on discussions and
feedback across BSW we have
drafted some objectives that
describe what starting well, living
well, aging well and dying well
would mean for local people.

We would welcome feedback on
these draft objectives.

A method of measuring the impact
for individuals would need to be
developed. This may be best
coordinated at a local level.



cc abed

{{ Providing feedback

The draft strategy is still awork in progress and further updates will be generated over the next
couple of months.

Key areas for feedback:

1. Do you agree with the priorities that have been identified?

2. What outcomes are important to measure?

3. What additional things should be in the draft strategy?

4. How should we gather feedback from the people of Wiltshire?



v¢ abed

{{ Providing feedback

The draft strategy is still awork in progress and further updates will be generated over the next
couple of months. If you would like to provide feedback on the current draft please do so by
emailing:

BSWstrategy@nhs.net

Or in writing via:

BSW Strategy Feedback

BSW Integrated Care Partnership
Jenner House

Chippenham

SN15 1GG


mailto:BSWstrategy@nhs.net

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon
Qnd Wiltshire

Entegrated Care Strategy (Draft)

Note: This is a draft version and is being shared with local people, politicians,

colleagues and partners so that the Strategy can be further developed and

Improved. At this stage the design of the document has not been reviewed by
Integrated Care Partnership experts for presentational format or to refine the language to make it as accessible
January 2023 as possible. This process will be undertaken for the final version.

Ver2.1 (draft)



Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

I e
- Welcome to our Integrated Care Strategy

What is our Integrated Care Strategy 4-6

<

«Q
3 Health for the people of Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and 7-10
Wiltshire
What difference are we trying to make? 11-16
Making it happen. 17-34

Making is sustainable (by using our resources people, buildings, money 35-42

differently)
Please let us know what you think. 43



Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

Welcome to our Integrated Care Strategy
Welcome to the Bath and North East Somerset (B&NES), Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW) Draft Integrated Care Strategy.

This draft strategy sets out our ambition as partners in health, social care and the voluntary sector to support the people of
BSW to live their best lives. The content of the strategy has been drawn from many conversations with partners and the
public on many different topics and in many different forums across BSW.

The draft strategy provides an overview covering the whole BSW area and connects with local strategies that are being
@bveloped in each of our three areas of B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire (referred to as ‘Places’). It also connects with those
épgvelopments that are being undertaken within individual services and organisations. In this context the draft strategy
provides a summary of why we are working together and outlines some of the specific actions we are undertaking.

The intention is for the strategy to continue to evolve over the coming years as we hear and learn more from local people and
our colleagues who deliver our services.

The strategy is therefore a first chapter in a much broader story of the work that we as partners within BSW are involved in. |
hope you find it informative and useful in finding out more about our approach. We would welcome your thoughts on how it
can be further improved.

Clir Richard Clewer
Chair of the BSW Integrated Care Partnership



Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

What is our Integrated Care
Strategy

Our Integrated Care Strategy tells the
story of how we are working together
across BSW.

&

&t brings together elements from
ghdividual strategies that exist across
our health and care system under the
guidance of our local Health and
Wellbeing Boards.

It is not intended to duplicate or
replace these other strategies, but to
provide a summary of how these
different elements are being
coordinated to improve the health and
wellbeing of the local population, to
tackle the health inequalities that exist
and to deliver better services.

Enabling strategies



Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

Common Themes Across our System (1)

Through our Integrated Care Strategy we will set out our common goals across partners. We recognise that this does not

mean that our individual approaches will not be exactly the same because we need to ensure that our efforts are driven by

the needs of our populations but this does not preclude us having the same overarching approach:

* Reducing inequalities across our population and targeting unwarranted variation in health and wellbeing outcomes for
different communities;

« Working together to strengthen resources that can help prevent and reduce the impact of poor health across our

population;

Developing a more integrated approach to addressing the wider determinants of poor health and wellbeing; and

Working with partners to continue the work of further developing community based resources.

6¢ oled

Whilst our three Health & Wellbeing Strategies approach meeting the needs of communities at a Place level in slightly
different ways there are strong themes of focussing on children and young people, older people and strengthening our work
on prevention, early intervention and the things we can all do to keep in as good health as we can.

The previous work on the BSW Care Model is reflected in the Strategy as a way of demonstrating the line of continuity in our
collective thinking in recent years. We have retained the principles and approach from the Care Model in our current work and
have built on this work as we continue to strengthen our integrated approach to improving the health and wellbeing of our
population across BSW.



Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

Common Themes Across our System (2)

The subsequent slides describe headlines from the Place based work that is being developed. We have not yet settled on
shared wording for our goals and the approach mapped out above is still being worked through. We believe that the process
of working through what we mean and what we want to achieve is more important that the words set out on these slides as
they take us to a more integrated set of relationships that will continue to grow and evolve over the life of the strategy.

Therefore we anticipate that the wording and content will evolve and change in response to feedback on our draft

@cumentation and in the next version of the strategy as a reflection of how the partnership is growing. In order to assure our
mmunities and all partners that we have specific initiatives, activities and outputs that we are working to we are producing

& Implementation Plan alongside the Strategy where key milestones and deliverables for 2023/24 and beyond taken from

our Place and System based strategies will be set out.



Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Health for the people of
Bath and North East
Somerset, Swindon and
Wiltshire

Tt obed



2 obed

{{ Health for the people of Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire

Wiltshire

BSW has a growing population, particularly in older age groups

The area is more affluent than the England average, but there
is a highly unequal distribution of wealth

The cost of housing is many parts of BSW is unaffordable for
the local population, with many employment options in the
area offering low wages.

® V5
»'v'-‘é

/ _/Vv\\_ er/
.

One million adults 1,500 square
and children miles

Cities, fowns
and rural areas

As partners we directly employ 37,600 colleagues and
benefit from the contribution of many more carers and
volunteers. The majority of these individuals are also
supported by the services we provide.

In BSW there are 2,800 Voluntary, Community and Social
Enterprises, three Local Authorities, 88 GP practices, 26
Primary Care Networks, three public health and three
social care teams, two community services providers,
three acute hospital trusts, two mental health trusts, an
ambulance trust and an Integrated Care Board (ICB).

Access to some highly specialised services requires travel
outside of BSW.



{{ Health for the people of Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire

The health outcomes experienced by local people are not as good for those living in our most deprived communities compared to those
living in more affluent areas. There are significant differences in healthy life expectancy across our populations and the prevalence of many

health conditions is higher for those living in less advantaged communities. Tackling this inequality is a priority for all our partner
organisations.

Demographics Demographics Demographics
ath and North East Somerset Swindon Wiltshire

, . ) . : 12} . . 12
Population W Life expectancy . Population " Life expectancy Population Life expectancy =
[r———r— T s mE———
(XX ® (XX ® — ¥
196,357 Healthy life expectancy 66.4 years m 222881 Healthy life expectancy 62,3 years m 504,070 Healthy life expectancy 66.9 years
|“| Lifeexpectancy 811years | lfeexpectancyBO2years |“| Lifeexpectancy B10years
QJ Healthy lite expectancy 66.7 years IHI Healthy life expectancy 2.8 years Healthy life expectancy 66,8 years
- 23% of the |ati - 25% af the it B 23% of the lati
0 Selis ar\ea:e:l 19%?“?1‘:“ [ 0-19 Years are u:::d 199:‘?:!':]:[\ i 0-19 Years are a;ed I‘PD:IP:IH?:IE":H -
I Inequality in life expectancy Inequality in life expectancy Inequality in life expectancy
o 59% of the latio - 59% of the ati - 5585 of the population
20 @'\"ea = are a;ed uem'é: 2Dn i 20-64 Years are a:cd h:ﬁﬁ::ﬁ" L] 20-64 Years are aged belnwr::en 20 -
and &4 years 30 years and 64 years * TOyears and 64 years ? 34 years
- [ 3
19% of the lati 17% ol the |t 2% of the lati
65+ Years ar\ca:\ctll 65P:rm];:|:':n w &8 years 65+ Years are aged 65[‘:#;;:3” IH‘ 5.7 years 65+ Years are ilsne'-d ﬁ5ﬁﬂ?l?v:n T 5.5 yaars

e \Women 83.5 - 85.1 years
e Men 80.2 —81.1 years

Access to a range of social care, NHS and partner services has been a
challenge for many BSW residents since the Covid pandemic. Our
strategy must prioritise improving the accessibility of services for all

SR T eeepeen

® Female in Bathavon South — 91 years
e Male in Trowbridge Central — 73 years




<

Mortality

The primary causes of premature mortality in BSW are
cancer, cardiovascular disease, and respiratory

disease

]

vt abed

Smoking prevalence is similar to national average of

13.9%

e 128,000 smokers

Variation between social groups

* Routine and manual workers are two times more
likely to smoke than managerial and professional

ones. |

» Social housing residents are four times as likely

Health for the people of Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire

Most child health indicators better than national average

Many children have difficult living circumstances

* 1in 4 children do not achieve a good level of development at the end of Reception

although lung cancer mortality °1 !n 10 Ch:(_]:;en Sk “Ymg In poverty
rates are lower than the national * 1in 200 children are in care

average Child health challenges are changing

e Teenage pregnancy rates are decreasing
e Obesity and mental health problems are increasing

Lung cancer is the most common
cause of cancer death in BSW,

Smoking prevalence across BSW
- Indicative Heat Map

(as recorded on the GP Record for those practices

and individuals that share data) Obesity

* Adult prevalence of overweight or obesity similar to national average in
Swindon and Wiltshire, below national average in BANES

« BANES 55.4%, Swindon 66.1%, Wiltshire 63.9%
« 578,000 people

+ Swindon has highest prevalence of childhood overweight or obesity
* Reception: BANES 7.4%, Swindon 11.2%, Wiltshire 7.9%
* Year 6: BANES no data, Swindon 36.1%, Wiltshire 31.6%

to smoke as homeowners



Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

What difference are we
trying to make?

G obed



ot abed

{{ What difference are we trying to make?

“Bottom up strategy — thinking about need “l won’t have to spend an inordinate amount of time
of the individual before the restrictions of and energy finding out what services are available to
the system.” help me care for my disabled grandson. ”

“Meeting the needs of the people on the
street.”

“All partners working together with the
same goal, clear communications with

“l wont have to

o beg for help”
clients

Some messages from the population of BSW



/v abed

{{ What difference are we trying to make?

Reduce the inequalities that
exists in health outcomes
for the population of BSW

Improve access Our
to services priorities

Create sustainable services
and focus on the wellbeing of
those who deliver services.

Provide continuity of care for

those living with complex
health needs and long term
conditions.



{{ What difference are we trying to make?

. - BANES Swindon iltshi
Reducing Inequalities BANES awincon Wiltshire
Health inequalities describe differences in 1h7% 1 [ o.1% 1] 0.4%

.- 2 2.6% 2l 6.1% 2B 2s5%

the oppqrtunltles tha_t peop!eT have t_o lead - - «— p -

healthy lives. These inequalities can include + [l 7.0% + [l 5.3% + [l 7.0%

shorter life expectancy, living with poorer — i — — il

health and less access to care services. 1 s2% 7 152% r 12.6%
o 8 15.7% 8 18.2% 8 16.5%
o These inequalities are commonly contributed ; TA8% ? . : T
Q 10 29.6% 10 9.1% 10 11.9%

gto by a range of factors such as diet,
cexercise, smoking, employment, housing

Our approach to reducing inequalities will include:
and access to transport. PP g1neq
. . e accelerating programmes that focus on preventing ill health
These health inequalities are often & Prog P &

experienced by those living in our most * prioritising resources towards communities experiencing inequality

deprived communities and those living with  developing care services fairly so that they are accessible to all
certain health conditions such as learning
disabilities and autism. Due to the scale of
health inequalities across BSW, reducing * ensuring we maintain and take action on accurate, complete and timely
information relating to inequalities

» working together to prevent digital exclusion

them is a core priority within our strategy.
» strengthening leadership and accountability for reducing inequalities.



61 abed

{{ What difference are we trying to make?

Achieving the outcomes that matter.

In BSW we want to support everyone:
* to have the best possible start in life — starting well
* to live a healthy and fulfilling life — living well

« as they get older, to do so in as active, independent
and healthy way as possible — aging well

 to have the best possible experience for them and
their families when their life ends — to die well.

The draft BSW outcomes on the right link to our
commitment as partners to focus greater attention on
prevention of ill health, maintaining wellbeing and to
tackle the health inequalities within our population.

As partners we want to develop these further through
discussion and agree how we will measure our progress
against them.

Start well
0-25
years

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Live well
25-64
years

1.
2.
3.

Age well
+64 years

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

1.

Whole life 2.

outcomes
for the

population

of BSW

3.

4.

5.

Draft — for discussion

| am a healthy baby and child
I am ready for school
| am safe and live in a caring environment

| am active and healthy
| can cope with life, feel safe and know how to seek help
I have life and career aspirations

| can lead a healthy lifestyle in a good environment
| feel | have control over my daily life
I am happy and have a good quality of life

| lead an independent life
| am active and feel safe
| can access services if | need them

Each person is seen as an individual
Each person gets fair access to care
Maximising comfort and wellbeing
Care is coordinated

All staff are prepared to care

Each community is prepared to help.

Raise the healthy life expectancy for our whole population
To reduce the gap in healthy life expectancy between
different areas by a minimum of 50%

Reduce the prevalence and impact of poverty within BSW
Improve wellbeing and reduce the prevalence of mental
health conditions within the population of BSW.

Reduce early deaths from preventable diseases

Note: The objectives developed around ‘end of life are not currently described from the perspective of “I’
is this something we wish to consider changing?



< What difference are we trying to make? Draift —for discussion

Following feedback from across B&NES, Swindon
and Wiltshire we have developed a number of
principles on which our approach to delivering our
priorities will be based.

o
Q
«Q
@ Reduce the inequalities that
a1 exists in health outcomes
o for the population of BSW
0 Provide continuity of care for
Improve access 2 those living with complex
to services priorities health needs and long term

conditions.

Create sustainable services
and focus on the wellbeing of
those who deliver services.

Principles for how we will deliver our priorities.

1.

We will improve the health of our population through prevention of illness,
early intervention and promoting wellbeing and independence through out life

We will take responsibility for addressing the wider determinants of health and
will reduce health inequalities in our communities

We will work as one system without boundaries

We will focus as much on improving mental health and wellbeing as we do on
physical health

We will make the best use of our combined available resources to deliver the
best outcomes

We will use shared evidence, listening and learning, and co-design care
around the individuals we serve

We will treat and support people at home or as close to home as possible
We will nurture a flexible and ambitious workforce

We will innovate and maximise the use of digital technology to improve care
and access to care while supporting those with limited access to technology

10. We will make decisions as close as possible to the people they affect.

11. We will be a learning system in everything we do



Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Making it happen.

TG obed



{{ Making it happen

What will make the difference?

To make a significant difference in the health and wellbeing of
the people of BSW we must change those things that impact
most on health outcomes. These include:

2990ed .

The wider determinants of health — the range of social
factors such as income, employment and transport which
are the most important driver for health.

Health behaviours and lifestyles — covering behaviours
such as smoking, alcohol consumption, diet and exercise
which are the second most important driver for health.
The place and communities that we live in — which
influence our health behaviours, social relationships and
networks.

An integrated health and care system — to coordinate
and tailor services to individual needs rather than to suit
organisations

" Socioeconomic Factors

Education  Job Status Famllya’S ial  Income  Communi

‘ pport S:-JI’(-ztj,r

.—[ Physical Environment @
my

Health Behaviors

LV

Tobacco Use Diet & Alcohol Use
Exercise Act ty

Health Care @ }

Access to Care
— Quality of Care

50% can

be traced
back to your
zip code!

O!‘Iiy 20%
include those

moments in

a healthcare



{{ Making it happen

Our BSW Care Model has been designed to illustrate how we will work
together to address these four elements that impact most on health

The BSW Care Model is for:

[ Working together to empower people to lead their best life ]

Starting well = Living well = Ageing well = Dying well

« The whole population - adults and
children, vulnerable groups, families and
carers.

 The whole life course — starting well,
living well, ageing well, end of life care and
dying well.

« All aspects of health and care — physical
and mental health, social care, health and

care services and all the wider

The BSW Care Model was developed through engagement with a determinants of health like education,
wide range of partners. It was also informed by the development of
health and care systems in the UK and internationally.

employment and housing.



< Making it happen

The Care Model consists of five core elements. Partners
across BSW are working together to develop each of these.

Starting well = Living well = Ageing well = Dying well

[ Working together to empower people to lead their best life

The five elements of the Care Model are consistent with programmes
of work being undertaken by partners across BSW. The model
emphasises the need to develop care services around the needs of
individuals, putting a stronger focus on prevention and wellbeing and
working together to create an integrated health and care system.

Personalised care

We want everyone who lives in BSW to
experience a personalised approach, however
they interact with health and care

Healthier communities

We want every community in BSW to be a
healthier community with reduced health
Inequality so that everyone has a better chance
to live a healthy life

Joined-up local teams

Multi-disciplinary teams, designed for and
based in healthier communities, will be able to
work together seamlessly to serve local people

Local specialist services

We will make more specialist services available
at home and closer to where people live

Specialist centres

Our network of specialist centres will develop to
focus more on the most specialist care and less
on routine services which we can provide
elsewhere



{{ Making it happen

Personalised Care
By focussing on personalised care we will support local
people at three levels:

 whole-population - to support people of all ages and
their carers to manage their physical and mental health
and wellbeing, build community resilience, and make
informed decisions and choices when their health
changes

A proactive and universal offer of support to people with
long-term physical and mental health conditions to
build knowledge, skills and confidence and to live well
with their health condition

GG obed

* Intensive and joined up approaches to empowering
people with more complex needs to have greater
choice and control over the care they receive.

The personalised care approach is intended to help
individuals to take control and responsibility for managing
their own health and wellbeing.

Note: Is this something that is common across BSW, or are
there differences in approach that we need to explain?

We will deliver a personalised care approach by
Implementing six, evidence-based approaches:

1.

W

o o1

Shared decision making - Shared decision-

making ensures that individuals are supported to make
decisions that are right for them. It is a collaborative
process through which a clinician supports a patient to
reach a decision about their treatment.

Personalised care and support planning - a series of
facilitated conversations in which the person, or those
who know them well, actively participates to explore the
management of their health and well-being within the
context of their whole life and family situation.

Enabling choice, including legal rights to choice
Social prescribing and community based support —
in which individuals are supported to access the widest
range of support and services available in their
community.

Supported self management

Personal health budgets and integrated personal
budgets



9g abed

{{ Making it happen

Comprehensive Personalised Care Model

All age, whole population approach to Personalised Care

TARGET POPULATIONS

INTERVENTIONS OUTCOMES

Specialist
Integrated Personal Commissioning, including
proactive case finding; personalised care and
support planning through multidisciplinary

Empowering people,
integrating care and
reducing unplanned

teams; personal health budgets and

integrated personal budgets. People service use.
Plus universal and targeted interventions with
& complex
Targeted é‘? needs
se finding and pe & A Supporting people to
n éj‘ build knowledge, skills
¥ & . and confidence and to live
peersupport and self ma nteducation. & People Wlth.long well with their health

g term physical conditions.

and mental health
conditions

Universal 30% Supporting people to stay well

Shared Decision Making. and hu“ding corrmunity
Enabling choice {e.g.in malemity, elective resilience, enabling people to
and and of life care). . make informed decisions and

Social prescribing and community Whole populauon choices when their health

connecting roles.

Community capacity bullding. 100% changes.



l . .
“ Makmg It happen Improve skills, good work and employment

Increased employment prospects and skill development
can have a direct impact on people’s health and
wellbeing. Workplaces therefore have a critical role in
supporting the physical and mental health of their
employees. In addition to supporting wider development
within the local economy, as large employers, health and

Healthier communities
Supporting the development of healthier communities
encompasses a range of interventions by partners.

— ® : L . . N
Good work ® Egllljgatuon and care organisations can play a o_llrect role in contrlbut!ng to
® the health and wellbeing of their employees and their

families within BSW.

ur surroundings & The food we eat
ﬁ Housing

7S gbey

The state of housing

Money and = Transport m has a significant | :
resources (0 0 o] O impact on both mental T .
and physical health o i

Housi /\ Families, friends 2228 and the inequalities
o ﬁ and communites T that exist within BSW.

Improving the quality of housing across BSW is a priority
“Voluntary Sector an equal for Local Authority and Housing Association partners and
partner/fully appreciated ” will have benefits in the health of local people.




P/ : : Wellbeing and mental health

“ Makmg It happen Our approach across B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire is focussed on
how individuals can manage their own health and wellbeing and draw
upon the wide range of support available within their local community to

Healthier communities —  HPYRHIE WIHE TAlYE DT SUPPUTL avalialic Wit el e -
help them do so. ealt

The Move More Programme in Swindon is supporting local people to
become more active through a range of support and interventions.

s
7« Include familye friends
Cmomd) Vo ;
oS

Keeping active at home Local sports, leisure and Exercise referral programmes Be Active support from Live
physical activities Well Swindon

Insert other examples of work being undertaken in particular communities across BSW (e.g. food, environment, transport, physical
activity programmes etc) (Ideas/material from Directors of Public Health, Place Directors and Partners)

Emergent priorities in the B&NES Pharmacy Optometry and Dentistry
e Jo”t‘lz "t'ef;‘]'_tlg and Vge”be'”g S”T‘tegy ol From April 2023 BSW Integrated Care Board will become responsible
: nsure that children and young people are healthy . : .
and ready for learning and education for the cgmmls§|on|ng of pharmacy, optometry and deptlstry within qur
2. Improve skills, good work and employment area. This provides an excellent opportunity to work with these providers
3. Strengthen compassionate and healthy at a local level to support the health of the communities in which they
communities operate.

4. Creating health promoting places




6G abed

{{ Making it happen

Joined up local teams

Joined up local teams will have a critical role to
play in providing both same day access for urgent
care and continuity of care for individuals with long
term conditions or complex care needs.

They will focus on three key ‘offers’ to the local
population:

« improved access to care & advice
* proactive personalised care from a range of

team members for individuals with long term
or complex health needs.

* helping everyone to stay well for longer
(prevention)

Joined up local teams will be designed to serve
populations of around 30,000-50,000 people in
natural neighbourhoods across BSW.

Forming these teams is an important element in developing
sustainable health and care services.

They will enable partner organisations to work together to ensure
that individuals are accessing care and support from the most
appropriate sources, including voluntary and third sector
organisations. This is important if health and care organisations
are to address the current workforce challenges that exist today
and individuals are to make the most of the wide range of
resources that are available within their community.

These teams will work across traditional professional and
organisational boundaries. To support this way of working we will
revise how our performance management, information sharing,
clinical governance, information technology, finances and
contracting processes operate. This will help these
neighbourhood teams operate with flexibility and responsiveness
in the way they support their local population.



09 abed

< Making it happen

Joined up local teams

Work is underway in Wiltshire to develop a
series of thirteen Neighbourhood
Collaboratives.

These collaboratives will bring together
partners from a range of sectors to provide
integrated support to the local populations
across the County.

STARTING WELL LIVING/AGEING WELL

SUPPORTING SELF CARE & PREVENTION

- Care co-ordinators / navigators, diabetes courses
« One to one support/care navigation

« Education/information giving

¢ Includes LD and Autism

UNIVERSAL AND EARLY HELP SUPPORT

Providing children, young people and families support and care in
the community including physical and emotional wellbeing.

- Deiive 25

- He

PROACTIVE CARE AND SUPPORT

« Clinical support at home (short, medium & long term)

+ Advice and treatment for health need

+ Specialist support for people living with one or more long term
condition and/or frailty

+ Includes LD and Autism

COMMUNITY HEALTH

Providing children, young people and families care in the
community for both physical and emotional wellbeing.

RESPONDING TO URGENT NEEDS
TARGETED SUPPORT o
* MIUs / Urgent care hubs, Urgent Community response
» Response to urgent need in your own home

+ Response to urgent need in a healthcare setting

Providing children, young people and families with targeted
specialist care for physical health

REHABILITATION AND RECOVERY FROM ILL HEALTH
AND/OR CRISIS

« Athome
+ Not at home

SPECIALIST SUPPORT - CHILDREN WITH COMPLEX
NEEDS

Providing children, young people and families with targeted
and specialist care for complex needs and physical health.

O 05 fon o

Neighbourhood Collaborative Model | Neitbourhool

an | DWW
{WCSE [ Mental Health
Children's Services / Fire /
Police

Mast werk will be
community driven
- some change
Wiltshire -wide

A/
Leaming and Sharing Between Collaboratives

DYING WELL

Integrated Community Based Care Services
e We are reviewing the way our current
1o | community based health and care services
need to operate to ensure they align with these
These services have critical interfaces with other new local teams across BSW. This is a
ﬁi';ﬂif’i)rﬁ%%ﬁ‘l'i?é?:netif"h:;iiﬁﬁig'ni"‘éi’ui’ib'i° significant programme of work and will need to
services). These interfaces will need to be

sonsidered as part of the co-design process. involve partners from across our health and
care system.

LIFE STAGES / ICBC BUNDLES




T9 abed

< Making it happen

Local specialist services

Advances in technology means more services can
be provided in local settings. Increasing the range
of specialist services available within people
homes and the community is a priority and is
Important in ensuring services are easy to access
for local people.

Work is already underway on a range of initiatives
including:

« enhanced access to diagnostic facilities at
locations across BSW

* access to specialist services to support
prevention and management of long-term
conditions

 the creation of virtual wards to enable local
people to access a range of specialist services
without the need to spend as much or any, time
in a hospital bed.

Community diagnostic centres

©E
@B

IMPROVED
POPULATION
HEALTH
OUTCOMES

The initial work in 2023
on community diagnostic
facilities will focus on the
deployment of mobile
units.

From 2024 the focus will
be on additional
permanent facilities
within BSW.

(%)

SUPPORT FOR
THE INTEGRATION
OF CARE

Q

INCREASED
DIAGNOSTIC
CAPACITY

&)

IMPROVED
PRODUCTIVITY
& EFFICIENCY

CROSS CUTTING THEMES
Improve staff development
and satisfaction

Make Every Contact Count and
support health promotion

Act as test sites for quality improvement,
research and innovation

Contribute to NHS Net Zero ambitions

Share learning across CDCs
and systems

Act as anchor institutions

2

IMPROVED
PATIENT
EXPERIENCE

REDUCED HEALTH
INEQUALITIES

“Community Diagnostic facilities will deliver additional, digitally
connected, diagnostic capacity in BSW, providing all patients
with a coordinated set of diagnostic tests in the community, in

as few visits as possible, enabling an accurate and fast
diagnosis on a range of a clinical pathways.”

Vision Statement for Community Diagnostic facilities




29 abed

{{ Making it happen

Local specialist services

Virtual Wards provide a safe and
efficient alternative to the use of an
NHS hospital bed, by supporting
individuals to receive their care,
assessment, monitoring and treatment
in their home or usual place of
residence. Virtual Wards combine care
delivered by a range of staff supported
by technology including a shared care
record and remote monitoring.

The virtual ward services in BSW will
provide a range of interventions,
tailored to meet the needs of the
individual, to help prevent hospital

admissions and to accelerate discharge

from hospital.

<4 BSW Virtual Wards Outline Model

Step Up
(Phase 1)

Alternative to acute
hospital bed

Step Down [Step Out
(Phase 2)

Early discharge for

acutely unwell patients

Single Paint of

Afoess

Clinical Triage

al Care

Coardination)

Access to Advice and

Guidance

Referral to Virtual

Single virtual ward model
across BSW

- Multl Disciplinary team

remobe monitoring

Source; BSW plan submitted to NHSEI 58,22



€9 abed

< Making it happen

Local specialist services

Long Terms Conditions

With an ageing population the prevalence of conditions like
mental illness, cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease
and diabetes is increasing across BSW. Our work on
managing these conditions is designed to focus on three
areas:

* Prevention: encouraging behaviours that prevent the
onset of conditions.

* Prevalence: early and proactive identification of people
at risk to reduce the impact of conditions.

* Treatment: increasing the percentage of people,
particularly those facing health inequalities, achieving
NICE guidance treatment targets.

llustrative example — The chain of Type 2 diabetes progression and interventions required to break it

Chain of Type
2 diabetes
progression

Objectives to
[ to

Unhealthy
lifestyle and
behaviours

Understamding
and engagement
with the causes of
the causes of the
causes of people
developing
diabetes

Evidence based
preven tiomn

Utilisation of
voluntary groups
amd Community
assets

Agreed support in
L 8

Dial ary
Care Support Team

Health Checks

Lack of knowledge
and appropriate
support once
diagnosed

Fatients know how to

and are supported to

reverse and f or better
control diabetes

Structured Education
Faer sup port groups

Weight managemant
and distetic support

Behaviour change

Gradually
worsening
control

Worsening

complications

Foot Protection

medications

Medications

Through our specialist services and our neighbourhood teams
working together, our aim is to prevent, break or slow the chain of
progression that results in poorer outcomes for our population and
increased costs and pressure for the health and care system.

We are working with our specialists in these conditions to
connect them with the emerging joined up local teams in
each neighbourhood in order to provide coordinated
lifestyle, psychological and medical advice and support.



{{ Making it happen

Specialist centres

Our hospitals and other specialist facilities play a critical role in
the provision of services to individuals with urgent, long-term
and elective health care needs.

The challenges of the pandemic and the pressures during the
winter of 2022/23 have highlighted the importance of the
g‘tJhospitaI sector capacity being available for individuals with acute
%onditions.

o

4él'hrough the work of our Acute Hospitals Alliance (AHA), which
involves the organisations that run the Great Western Hospital in
Swindon, the Royal United Hospital in Bath and Salisbury District
Hospital colleagues are working together to improve the way
services are delivered.

The AHA are developing a clinical strategy that will set out the
role the hospitals will play in the delivery of urgent care services,
the management of long-term conditions and how they can
improve the quality and productivity of elective care services in
areas like outpatients, diagnostics and surgery.

L& Acute Hospital Alliance  AHA in BSW Roadmap 2023-2026 [06/01;’23]

P1 Clinical

Note: Image being updated over the next few weeks.

NHS

This roadmap is based on Committees in Common Strategy and plans for 2022-23 Five Core Priority Schemes, 2023-24 update pending

Horizon 1 (22-2302-4) Horizon (23-24)  Horizon 3 (Year 24-25-26)

4
B D | EWhmhmin @ @ . ®
=] Frogramme dafinad BEWInagrated Demand & Capacity  Amual Plan Anrusl Plan sllent Acute Services
H o 3 yair Digital Stratagy @ Care Straiegy  Modading Rifrahad S-yaar gfl’*l‘"“’s :-'I‘fw' Exc:
. rategy & pan 5
c2 B comnty @, B s Bt ° for BSW Population
Senices Stialegy | 22 - ~
= - = B5W Care Mod
= @ s=wice L Business plan ™ ® e q:’ iy ameeddad b
3 v TIC DCafina AHA @ T links with .
- @ Fincipis F1-FE dafinad Cinices Sumi
@ L ] Qe Jint Pragranmme dafiid [E— % i Upssr Gl
£ ok ot Jaint Visis Gy Doy Clnlealiumms o 3% i Uppor  aild mies
= E Ay Kb *» Cuartik al 3 i
g-'n & | DOwy L CRRCBIS T * Phase 3 eap n"’“ al 3 s Fhasa 4 Daes Dk Digitiseil
h Promm s nom e
il = c""‘:““" * Frogramme [ mopz] il il T r— balares sirges e e
= il Demand & Capacity B Agr 2 - et
Fols Mediling i Cirical Sirategy
Lo Cirical K atwarks Fris 20eep Ohe V2O @ L] @ Frasa 4 Dsce D
=20 Maepng gy Phase 1 Desp W0 Broocs e |6 months] Phasa 3 inactment Apr 34 rogramme [ marthr]
» i) -
2 o Clinical Senices rogramme (5 1 ™ @ Jonedp panning famd Rekeshed A W GWH Go-lie May 26
o Cotme tian Framewark: @  AHF X 12 Wi Phase 2 @ Proii 3 Dcsp One o pn SFT Ealive Jan 26
E Tt 22 ® e ‘Analysis & Racommndatigt Frograrie {6 months] e :
= 5 oLhe sopt
Clinical Stocktaka Ot 22 i Phisa 3 imestment Apr 23
L Fhasa 2 Dagg Dbl
Strabagy Maraiie Oct/ o & unt Dae 22 @ Fiogromme (6 months]
2 Chisical Sirassqy Puckogs .E!ﬁeshﬂl AHA
W0 Approved (Mo Dec] Te-year plan
Proecunamant Taget Defsmred
LW Midwifory Workionce FEE Aporssd
=
& Midical wodores Anaysis 8 @ Bmbeiz LRecommandatipn: @ Phoso 1 Deep Dive ® Juy 73
a EXSIWNAHE Rbotic Recommandations [ ] Fregramma [§ meada] [ Fiveyear @ G Apmu
- Y -
I Burgery Flan Nursing Wiekbares Anabyriz & Recammendations @) ® o Piam ion Tzt Apr 23
= THE Wark E @ Fincipi conmad
i SHP % 12 Warkioec & Phasa 1 Analysis & Racommendaiing
“ @  ZE e b Fie warkatisanie lanchad @ Fotoned Siddar Jan
[Estatas. Paopla) . iagnatics. Backl
Y APA Targel TBG Mairtarande. Digtal Wadcal @ Crociremens imnched Jul 22
Equigmart. Sirdagpe D]

P2 Workforce Modelling P3 Openbook, Use of Resources P4 Capital Plan P5 EPR

The partners in the Acute Hospital Alliance are also working
together on the development of facilities in the Sulis Hospital in
Peasdown St John. This modern facility could play a critical role in
reducing the waiting times for surgical procedures for the
population of BSW



G9 abed

< Making it happen

Swindon Joint Health
B&NES Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy i S i
and Wellbeing Strategy
2023-2030

and Wellbeing Strategy

This integrated care strategy is
intended to provide a high-level
overview of the strategic
approach being taken across the
whole health and care system.

Place
Based
Strategies
(x3)

Far greater detail will be set out
in each of the sub strategies that
are being developed across
BSW. BSW

Green Plan
The individual strategies will Einancial
clearly demonstrate how the sustainability strategy
approach being developed will
help to deliver the priorities,
outcomes and principles set out
in this strategy. Digital strategy

Enabling strategies

People strategy

Estate strategy



< Making it happen

Transformation Programme

Delivering the changes described in this strategy will require coordinated
programmes of work to be delivered at pace. To be successful these programmes
will need to make a difference from the homes in which individuals live through,
every setting where care is delivered up to and including our specialist hospitals.

Enabling strategies

The proposed programmes of work are illustrated below. These programmes will be
goverseen by the three Local Authorities and the Integrated Care Board and will

Sreport into these statutory organisations as appropriate.
D

8A strategic programme management office will support the delivery of these
programmes, ensuring they are properly initiated, resourced and managed. The
strategic programme management office will also facilitate progress reporting to
partner organisations across BSW.

B&NES Place Based Swindon Place Based Wiltshire Place Based
Transformation Transformation Transformation
Programmes Programmes Programmes




/9 abed

{{ Making it happen

Delivering the Strategy (1)

Our strategy brings together the range of strategies in place and in development across our system. Each
of these strategies, either at a Place or System level, set out a range of priorities and areas of change and
improvement for our population.

We are clear that we need to demonstrate how we are progressing each of these strategies and the
overarching Integrated Care Strategy.

Our approach to doing this is through our Integrated Care Strategy Implementation Plan. This is our local
version of the Joint Forward Plan which all Integrated Care Boards across England are required to
produce. Our Implementation Plan sets out the key elements of the plans to deliver our system strategy
and the Place and population group strategies therein.

It should be noted that as part of our assurance that our strategies and plans are consistent and
complementary, we are required to consult on the Implementation Plan with our local Health and
Wellbeing Boards. This is an important component of the work to strengthen the integration of approach
across all system partners.



99 abed

{{ Making it happen

Delivering the Strategy (2)

The Implementation Plan is also a Five-Year document that will be updated to reflect progress and future
development of the Strategy. This annual refresh process will take place alongside the refresh of the
Strategy and will enable partners to review progress and to take into account any changes in priority and
population need.

The plan will reach across all partners rather than solely the NHS. The Implementation Plan should be
considered alongside the Strategy. It is aimed at fulfilling the following:

« Setting out key milestones and deliverables from the constituent strategies that make up the body of
what we want to deliver through our Integrated Care Strategy. This will not be an exhaustive list of all
the milestones and deliverables in those strategies but, instead, the key ones that demonstrate our
integrated partnership approach,;

« The 2023/24 version of the Plan will focus on the coming year and will be updated annually;
« Setting out the key duties required of the NHS as part of the Joint Forward Plan; and

» Setting out the key transformation programmes and services that deliver the NHS elements of the
Strategy.



Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Making It sustainable

69 abed

by using our resources people, technology, buildings and money differently



{{ Making it happen

There are a range of enabling activities that will underpin the development of sustainable health and care system.

( Developing our workforce \ / . \
37,600 people work in health and care in HH N ;0 Mak",'g the best use of technology and data
i BSW. Work is underway to respond to the 10 2] | ¥ We will make the best use of technology and

improvement themes identified in the data to improve health and care for people

People Plan, with a strong focus on vss N BSW.We know that some people cannot
x recruitment and retention of the workforce ‘@‘ W access technology and we will make sure our
N -

required. services are always accessible for everyone.

0/ abe

~

Financial sustainability

BSW faces a significant financial challenge
over the next decade. Partners will to work
together to ensure we achieve the maximum
value for every £ we spend.

A Y

Investing in facilities of the future
We will invest millions of pounds to improve
community facilities, open up new locations
and ensure that our specialist centres are fit
for the future.




T/ obed

{{ Making it sustainable

Place holder for our workforce response

Action Jas Sohal



Z/) abed

{{ Making it sustainable

Place holder for our digital response

Action Jane Moore

/ Electronic Use Of |nf0rmat|0n7

| Patient
Records /

Infrastructure )

[ Service Level
Solutions




¢/ obed

{{ Making it sustainable

Place holder for our Estates response

Action: Simon Yeo



v/ abed

{{ Making it sustainable

Place holder for our financial response

(covering NHS and Local Authority financial position
required and setting out our approach.

Key messages — how we use our resources today
What do we want to be different in future?)

Action: Gary Henege

What Makes What We Spend
Us Healthy On Being Healthy

P
2 T

MEDICAL
SERVICES

ENVIRONMENT 20°%
HEALTEY SEHAVIORS

20

o

HEALTHY BEHAVIORNS 4%,
et e

“A system that understands the whole cost of

health care”




G) abed

{{ Making it sustainable

Place holder for summary of our Green Plan

Action: Simon Yeo/Geoff Underwood



9/ abed

Anchor System

Place holder for our narrative on our role as Anchor Institutions

Proposed Authors: Place Directors/Dir of Strategy and Transformation

* Anchor culture
* What do we mean by and want from an Anchor Culture within BSW?

 What are the Macro and Micro interventions that we want to make?



Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Please let us know what you think

We are asking our local colleagues working in B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire to discuss this strategy and

gather feedback as part of their ongoing engagement with local residents and health and care colleagues.
& The intention is to have an approved version of the Strategy by 315t March. After that the approach and the
strategy will continue to evolve as we respond to the changing needs of the local population.

]/ 9b

We would welcome any feedback you would like to provide on this draft strategy
and how you feel it cimprove it.

Please send your thoughts to (we need a generic email address that can be used to capture this
feedback)

Action — Jane Moore



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

26 January 2023

Subject: Draft Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Wiltshire

Executive Summary
The Joint Local Health & Wellbeing Strategy (JLHWS) is due to be updated.

The Health and Wellbeing Joint Strategic Needs assessment (JSNA) and Joint
Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy are the foundations upon which the health
and wellbeing board exercises its shared leadership across the wider
determinants that influence improved health and wellbeing, such as housing
and education. JSNAs and JLHWSs enable commissioners to plan and
commission integrated services that meet the needs of their whole local
community, in particular for the most vulnerable individuals and the groups with
the worst health outcomes.

Wiltshire’s JSNA was recently updated and published in the autumn of 2022. It
provides a summary of the current and future health and wellbeing needs of
people in Wiltshire. It builds on previous JSNAs to provide a comprehensive
picture of the health and wellbeing needs of Wiltshire using a broad range of
indicators presented in accessible format for all parties to use. This has
informed the development of the draft JLHWS together with the workshop held
on 1 December and input from a steering group incorporating public health,
social care, NHS and Healthwatch Wiltshire representatives to shape its
structure and priorities.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board approves the draft JLHWS at Appendix 1 for
public consultation and considers the feedback at its meeting in March.

Reason for Proposal

It is a statutory responsibility of Wiltshire Council and the NHS to cooperate
through the Health and Wellbeing Board to develop a Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy

Lucy Townsend Fiona Slevin-Brown
Corporate Director, People Place Director, Wiltshire
Wiltshire Council BSW NHS ICB

Page 79



Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

26 January 2023

Subject: Draft Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Wiltshire

Purpose of Report

1. To seek approval for consultation on the draft Joint Local Health and
Wellbeing Strategy for Wiltshire (JLHWSW).

Relevance to the Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy

2. The draft strategy broadly continues with the four guiding themes of the
existing strategy but proposes new medium-term goals and improved
accountability for delivery.

Background

3. Based on the existing statutory guidance, the HWB JSNA should be an
assessment of the current and future health and social care needs of the
local community — these are needs that could be met by the local
authority, ICB, or NHS England Specialised Commissioning. The most
recent JSNA was refreshed in line with the guidance and published in
autumn 2022. It is kept up to date on the Wiltshire Intelligence Network
website.

4, DHSC recently produced statutory guidance for Integrated Care
Partnerships (ICPs) on the development of the Integrated Care Strategies.
The Health and Care Act 2022 assumes a sequencing whereby the ICP
sets out in the Integrated Care Strategy how the assessed needs of the
area (drawing upon JSNAs) “are to be met” by the Integrated Care Board,
councils and NHSE exercising their functions. The Integrated Care
Strategy will be particularly important for when the ICB and its partner
trusts are preparing their first five-year Joint Forward Plan (known as a
Implementation Plan for BSW, with the intention of a draft being ready by
the end of the March). Integrated care partnerships should also ensure
that the integrated care strategy facilitates subsidiarity in decision making,
ensuring that it only addresses priorities that are best managed at system-
level, and not replace or supersede the priorities that are best done locally
through the joint local health and wellbeing strategies.

5. The guidance states that the Integrated Care Strategy should complement
the production of local JHWSs. It should identify where needs could be
better addressed at integrated care system level and bring learning from
across places and the system to drive improvement and innovation, for
example challenges that could be met by integrating the workforce or
considering population health and care needs and services over this larger

Page 80


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/223842/Statutory-Guidance-on-Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessments-and-Joint-Health-and-Wellbeing-Strategies-March-2013.pdf
https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/jsna/
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fguidance-on-the-preparation-of-integrated-care-strategies&data=05%7C01%7CDavid.Bowater%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7Cf9c6cb665315447cccd908da761d5d33%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637952165730251937%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TUlU%2FZKSTJyTsyaxIUwk66e4Y80IN%2FEIMbT4Hr8phsQ%3D&reserved=0

ICS strategies and plans

area. It should not replace or supersede the joint local health and
wellbeing strategies, which will continue to have a vital role at place.

Following a period of engagement, DHSC has also published new
guidance on how Health and Wellbeing Boards and other partners in the
system should work together (NB this is different from the statutory
membership or statutory guidance on the JLHWS). General HWB duties
and powers remain the same (encouraging integration, developing JSNAs,
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessments and JLHWSSs, signing off on Better
Care Plans). However, there is a need to consider the Integrated Care
Strategy in a refreshed JLHWS and to be an active participant in its
development — with key principles in working together being bottom-up
development, subsidiarity, clear governance, collaboration and avoiding
duplication.

In the guidance, the ICBs inherit functions and duties that previously
rested with CCGs (chiefly ensuring HWB input to its commissioning and
forward plans, annual reports and performance assessments). NHSE
must also assess how the ICB has met its duty to have regard to the
JSNA and JLHWS and consult the HWB on its views. In addition to this,
HWBs will be expected to receive a copy of an ICB joint capital resource
plan, to ensure alignment to local priorities. The CQC will assess how
effectively the system as a whole is working.

PLACE

Intogntod Care Strategy
The meet needs in
JSNAs

* Produced by the ICP

+ Relates to ICB, NHS
Engtand, and local
authorities

Joint local health and S-year joint forward plan

wellbelng strategy
To meet needs in JSNA

* Produced by Health and
Wellbeing Boards

+ Relates to ICB, NHS
England, and the local
authority

Main Considerations

8.

Must have regard to
integrated care strategy

« Must include steps to

implement JLHWS

« Jointly developed by

ICBs and partner
Trusts/FTs

The existing JHWS was due for revision by the end of 2022. The Health
and Wellbeing Board held a workshop on 1 December to determine its
priorities for the refreshed JLHWS (an in turn the Integrated Care
Strategy), drawing on the findings of the recently produced JSNA. The
outputs from the workshop informed the priorities for the new JLHWS and
the revision of its structure was overseen by a steering group
incorporating public health, social care, NHS and Healthwatch Wiltshire
representatives. The draft JLHWS is attached as Appendix 1.

Page 81


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-and-wellbeing-boards-guidance

10.

11.

The revised draft JLHWS for Wiltshire continues the four guiding themes
of the existing strategy but proposes new medium term goals and
accountability mechanisms. It sets out a clear expectation that it is
reflected in the Integrated Care Strategy, as well as organisational,
commissioning and delivery plans. It notes statutory duties for the Health
and Wellbeing Board to be consulted on the Integrated Care Strategy,
include a statement of compliance within that strategy and for consultation
on the BSW ICB annual report. It also states that the Health and
Wellbeing Board will consider regular progress reports on the delivery of
this strategy, which will be used to inform the work programme of the
Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance and the individual work of members of
the board.

There will be an opportunity for further engagement on the Integrated
Care Strategy for the BSW ICS and the local JHWS for Wiltshire to take
place in tandem over the next month or so. The strategies will be
considered by meetings of the Wiltshire Health Select Committee, the
Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance (31 January), the VCSE Alliance,
Primary Care Network Clinical Directors and other established local
governance. With engagement being led locally by the ICAs this will avoid
unnecessary duplication.

Specific consultation questions for the Wiltshire JLHWS have been drafted
and are included as Appendix 2. These will be made available via an
online survey and by paper where appropriate.

Next Steps

12.

Following approval for consultation on the JLHWS, there will be
engagement via existing governance groups that are taking place and
online and input will also be sought from the VCSE Alliance and
Healthwatch Wiltshire. Consultation feedback will be brought back to the
Health and Wellbeing Board on 31 March along with a revised strategy for
final approval.

Lucy Townsend Fiona Slevin-Brown
Corporate Director, People Place Director, Wiltshire
Wiltshire Council BSW NHS ICB

Report Authors:
David Bowater, Senior Corporate Support Manager, Wiltshire Council

Page 82



Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy
2023-2032

Foreword

The health and wellbeing of the people of Wiltshire is the highest priority for the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing
Board. We are determined to ensure that “people in Wiltshire are empowered to live full, healthy and enriched
lives.”

This strategy has been developed based upon the evidence of need and has enabled the board to focus on four
thematic areas where it can have its most impact, ensuring everyone has access to the opportunities and
services that we would expect for our own friends and families. We know that our population is ageing (there is
a forecast increase of 87% in our 85 and over population by 2040). We also know that where someone is born
and raised in Wiltshire can have a significant influence on how healthy they are and how long they will live and
that, sadly, the pandemic has further exacerbated these health inequalities. We want to ensure everyone can
thrive in Wiltshire. Achieving this will mean a clear focus on reducing inequalities but also connecting with
communities to encourage local action and better tailoring the delivery of our services to reflect the needs of
local areas.

As organisations responsible for designing, commissioning and delivering a huge range of health and social care
services for Wiltshire residents, we are keen to make services the best they can be and excellent value.
Integrated working is an essential part of this. We also recognise the need to shift the focus from acute to
primary and community care and, in turn, to preventative activity and population health. A population health
approach will allow the risks and rewards of investment in services to be shared locally and the potential to try
new approaches such as clustering more care services around GPs or commissioning on the basis of whole
population health outcomes rather than systems which reward increased contact. It will also mean we fully
recognise the difference good jobs, housing, natural environments, education and community can make to
health and wellbeing.

We must target our collective resources where the evidence tells us action will make the greatest
improvements to people’s health and wellbeing. Therefore, our four guiding themes for this strategy build on
those of our previous strategy (and those reflected in Wiltshire Council’s Business Plan) as a clear long term
commitment to this way of working. They are:

1. Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities

2. Prevention and early intervention

3. Localisation and connecting with communities

4. Integration and working together

As a board we will continue to work closely together to deliver the vision of this strategy so that our ambition is
realised.

Clir Richard Clewer
Chair, Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board

Organisational logos

Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care System,

Wiltshire Council, Healthwatch Wiltshire, NHS England, Wiltshire Police and Crime
Commissioner, Wiltshire Police, Wiltshire Local Medical Committee, SW Ambulance Service
Trust, Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership, Oxford Health Trust, Wiltshire Health
and Care, HCRG, Royal United Hospital, Salisbury Foundation Trust, Great Western Hospital,
DWEFRS, VCS voice P age 83



Introduction

Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) was introduced by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. Itis a
partnership that brings together the leaders of the health and social care system. The board is required by
legislation to deliver specific responsibilities:

e Produce a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment
e Develop a Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy
e Encourage and enable integrated working between health and social care

The JSNA uses current data and evidence about health and wellbeing in Wiltshire, to highlight the health needs
of the whole community. It demonstrates how needs may vary for different age groups, as well as identifying
health differences for disadvantaged or vulnerable groups. The JSNA looks at a wide range of factors that help
shape and influence the health and wellbeing of individuals, families and local communities such as education,
employment, housing, transport and the environment.

www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk

Within this document health is understood to be a dynamic state of complete physical, mental, spiritual and
social well-being and not merely the absence of disease or infirmity.

This Health and Wellbeing Strategy is a shared strategy, which aims to improve the health and wellbeing of the
local population. It uses the analysis and data from the JSNA, to help identify and agree the key ambitions for
our population which as a Health and Wellbeing Board we will work together to deliver.

It does not list everything that all organisations will be doing to improve health and wellbeing. Instead it focuses
on where Wiltshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board can add value and sets out our vision for integrated working
for the future.

The purpose of the strategy is to enable:
e All health and wellbeing partners to be clear about our agreed priorities

e All members of the HWB to embed the priorities within their own organisations and ensure they are
reflected in a joined-up way in their commissioning and delivery plans (this is a statutory duty for the
council and the NHS)

e The board to hold organisations to account for their actions towards achieving the objectives and
priorities in the strategy

Wiltshire’s strategy has been developed in tandem with the new Integrated Care Strategy (the ‘system level’
strategy) for Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW) and the first five-year Joint Forward
Plan for the Integrated Care Board which will deliver it. The two strategies are complementary and differentiate
the activity that will be taking place at ‘system’ (ie BSW) and ‘place’ (ie Wiltshire) levels. To ensure alignment
Wiltshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board is consulted on the system level strategies and related delivery plans
and has the opportunity to include a statement on compliance with the JSNA and JLHWS within that document,
as well as to be consulted on the annual report for BSW.

Wiltshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board will consider regular progress reports on the delivery of this strategy,
which will inform the wrok programme of the Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance and the individual work of
members of the board. The progress reports will also inform the timescale for any refresh of this strategy
before 2032.

Page 84



http://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/

Overview of Wiltshire population

Wiltshire’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment provides an in-depth analysis of the needs of the population of
Wiltshire. Below is an overview of population and deprivation:

Wiltshire’s current population:
- 510,400
- 51% female and 49% male

By 2040 in Wiltshire:

- Under 65+ population expected to have decreased by 3%

- 65+ population expected to have increased by 43%

- 85+ population expected to have increased by 87% (from 15,200 to 28,438)

Areas of deprivation:

There are 8 of the 285 small areas of geography (LSOAS) in Wiltshire that are within the 20% nationally
most deprived. They are classified as “urban city and town”, and found in Trowbridge, Chippenham,
Melksham and Salisbury. Households in Wiltshire in the most deprived areas experience higher levels of
fuel poverty (17% of households compared with 7% in the least deprived areas).

Health inequalities are understood to be avoidable, unfair and systemic differences in health between
different groups of people. There are many groups experiencing health inequalities including those from
ethnic minority communities, those experiencing homelessness, those with a learning disability and those
living in rural areas. It is useful to keep this in mind when reading through the JSNA.

The health of those in Wiltshire is generally very good compared to the national average. On the whole
people in Wiltshire have a higher life expectancy and healthy life expectancy than the England average.
Fewer people are living in areas of deprivation, smaller proportions are living unhealthy lifestyles, more
people have been vaccinated and crime and unemployment rates are very low. However, evidence from the
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment has highlighted that the most deprived 20% of areas within Wiltshire have
repeatedly poorer outcomes than the least deprived 20%.

Our communities living in those least deprived areas of the county, will enjoy a greater array of life chances
and more opportunities to lead a flourishing life. They also have better health. The two are linked: the more
favoured people are, socially and economically, the better their health. Inequalities within Wiltshire, and
the need to maintain a focus on major health issues, for example reducing deaths from cancer and
cardiovascular disease, mean that local services should always be accessible to all. Inequalities do exist in
Wiltshire and, with an ageing population structure health needs are due to change further over future
years. This, combined with the reduction in the working age population means that the current approaches
to health and care will not be sustainable in the future and could have an impact on all aspects of our lives if
good health is not prioritised. Therefore, we must narrow the gap in health and wellbeing outcomes. We
have to make sure everyone has the opportunity to have an excellent education, to learn skills and get a
good job, to live in a nice environment and live healthier lifestyles into old age.

Page 85



https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/jsna/

Vision

“People in Wiltshire are empowered to live full, healthy and enriched lives”

Key Themes of Wiltshire’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy

1. Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities
In everything we do, we consider the impact of the action on social mobility and ask how we can help to
tackle the disparities in opportunities, experience, access and health outcomes that exist within Wiltshire.
We focus on the factors that have the greatest influence on people’s health, such as ensuring good and
secure homes and jobs.

2. Prevention and early intervention
We take a long-term view, focusing on what is right for Wiltshire and invest in prevention and early
intervention to tackle problems before they get worse. We encourage personal responsibility and have a
whole life approach to planning and providing services for our residents alongside this, aimed at improving
outcomes in population health and care.

3. Localisation and connecting with communities
We ensure our dialogue with communities is open, transparent and inclusive, in the right place and at the
right time so that the distinctive needs of local communities are met. We enable stronger and resilient
communities and support broader social and economic development

4. Working together and integration
We design and deliver our activities in partnership with service users, local communities and public sector
partners. We collectively consider how to integrate our work, get maximum value for public sector spend
and plan our use of the public sector estate together.

Page 86



Theme 1: Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities

In everything we do, we consider the impact of the action on social mobility and ask how we can help to
tackle the disparities in opportunities, experience, access and health outcomes that exist within Wiltshire.
We focus on the factors that have the greatest influence on people’s health, such as ensuring good and
secure homes and jobs.

Case for change

Whilst a significant proportion of our population are healthy; good health isn’t just about the treatment of
illness. It is the food we eat, the relationships we maintain, the environments in which we live and work and
the opportunities we have to thrive. Supporting people to remain healthy, independent and well is a crucial
feature of this strategy. To make the biggest changes in people’s health and wellbeing, we need to focus on
the social and environmental factors impacting on people’s lives. Addressing these wider determinants of
health - such as housing, unemployment, homelessness, education, social isolation, transport and
community safety - is critical for improving social mobility and tackling inequalities.

Achieving change
We will:

e Promote health in all policies — including housing, employment and planning. This will include the
development of sustainable communities, whole life housing and walkable neighbourhoods. The
review of Wiltshire’s Local Plan and Local Transport Plan is an important opportunity to deliver this.

e Support healthy home settings — with action on fuel poverty, helping people to find work, mental
health and loneliness and by increasing digital inclusion

e Give children the best start in life — with a focus on the whole family, family learning, parenting
advice, relationship support, the first 1000 days/ early years and community health services

e Target outreach activity — identifying particular groups to improve health outcomes and access to
services (identifying and then focusing on several of these each year) - work to tackle root causes,
plan delivery and carry out evaluation.

e Improve access through online services, community locations and mobile services as well as
community diagnostic hubs.

1. The Home Setting 2. Early Identification and Prevention 3. Tackling Root Causes
The ‘home’ plays a key role in enabling Focus on children, working across Tackling root-causes and addressing causal
people to achieve good health and wellbeing. ‘whole’ family interventions factors; not just focusing on the symptoms
ot Symptoms
. ~  The result or outcome of the
~ é. problem
. w2
[ﬂ Jo\ Lifecourse The Problem
N g "}‘,",."
L_KBle - | Diverting people from statutory or Causes
formal services through local, "The Roots” — system below
} . S X the surface bringing about the
a flexible, community solutions problem {not always obvious)
_=—————= _—
« Improved physical health, as well as » Reducing long-term health effects from » Reduce risk of frequent and multiple
better mental health and well being exposures of direct/in-direct harms on young contacts to services/agencies
= Better social interactions and inclusions people » Reduced victimisation
« Better access to services and » Increasing resilience of our whole population * Improved health and wellbeing realised
opportunities » Reducing social isolation and loneliness earlier

« Improved health and wellbeing

Page 87



Theme 2: Prevention and early intervention

We take a long-term view, focusing on what is right for Wiltshire and invest in prevention and early
intervention to tackle problems before they get worse. We encourage personal responsibility and have a
whole life approach to planning and providing services for our residents alongside this, aimed at improving
outcomes in population health and care.

Case for change

Evidence suggests 60% of what we do to prevent poor health and improve wellbeing relates to social
determinants of health i.e. the conditions in which people are born, grow, live, work and age. Unhealthy
behaviours for example smoking, alcohol misuse, poor diet and lack of physical activity, are significant
contributors to a large proportion of ill health and long-term health conditions such as cancers,
cardiovascular disease, diabetes and dementia. We need a system that is fit for purpose, can manage the
challenges of increasing demand, focuses on prevention, supports those with long-term conditions and
their carers and helps our populations to improve their health outcomes.

Achieving change
We will:

e Lay the foundations for good emotional wellbeing whilst young — by developing a coordinated
approach and promoting a core offer in schools across Wiltshire relevant to the challenges young
people face (including new challenges such as social media)

e Encourage personal responsibility across the life course —in all schools, with working age adults and
for the elderly — focusing on healthy lifestyles, smoking cessation, alcohol and substance misuse

e Prevent ill health - through increased uptake of screening, health checks and immunisations as well
as ensuring the best use of antibiotics.

e Enable a healthy workforce through targeted preventative activity

e Adopt a proactive population health management approach — rolling this out to new areas (such as
management of moderate frailty) each year to enable earlier detection and intervention

Page 88



Theme 3: Localisation and connecting with communities

We ensure our dialogue with communities is open, transparent and inclusive, in the right place and at the
right time so that the distinctive needs of local communities are met. We enable stronger and resilient
communities and support broader social and economic development

Case for change

Population growth and management of long term conditions means our health and care system is under
increasing pressure, particularly as it recovers from the pandemic. When people have the skills, knowledge
and confidence to manage their own health and care, not only do they achieve better health outcomes,
there is also the benefit of reduced healthcare costs and increased satisfaction with services. However,
when individuals in a community feel isolated, this impacts their ability to remain resilient, which is a strong
predictor for poor outcomes. Enabling communities to be stronger and more resilient allows local solutions
for local problems, by working together with partner agencies and the voluntary sector to meet their health
and wellbeing needs.

Achieving change
We will:

e Support local community action — through initiatives such as neighbourhood collaboratives allied to
the development of Primary Care Networks, the community mental health model, area board
activity using community area JSNAs to inform local action planning and the allocation and bidding
for wellbeing grants

e Pilot community conversations — starting with neighbourhoods in Wiltshire that have significant
deprivation and roll these out gradually across the county.

e Consider the way in which we buy goods and services can deliver improved local job opportunities
(acting as ‘anchor’ institutions) and other wider benefits (social value)

e Embed Healthwatch Wiltshire and voluntary and community sector voices in relevant decision-
making structures and ensure the public voice is heard with consultation results and co-production
reflected in decision papers and relevant attendance at the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Page 89



Theme 4: Working together and integration

We design and deliver our activities in partnership with service users, local communities and public sector
partners. We collectively consider how to integrate our work, get maximum value for public sector spend
and plan our use of the public sector estate together.

Case for change

Our current health and care system is under pressure and can be confusing for patients, families and carers.
As our populations get older and more people develop long-term health conditions, our system is becoming
less able to cope with the changing needs and expectations of the people it serves. This is leading to higher
demand for social care, carers and community health services and these pressures will continue to increase
with a reduction in the working age population. The way we pay for health and care services can encourage
high end care in expensive settings, often reinforcing isolated working practices. We currently spend too
much on services responding at the point of crisis and not enough on early intervention and preventative
support that aims to keep people well for longer. Initial signs are that covid has reinforced the investment in
acute services and although there has been some staffing growth there are also challenges with increasing
activity and productivity across the system to address the elective care backlog.

Achieving change
We will:

e Provide integrated, personalised services at key stages in a person’s life — this will include starting to
complete later life planning with people in their early 60s (or before that in more deprived areas) so
that we are preparing for when they are older, end of life care, and increasing the provision of
personal budgets

e Boost ‘out-of-hospital’ care, encouraging

. . , . we car,
a ‘hospital without walls” model with 'a‘*‘N "

. - <©
improved digital and local access to on
consultants, and dissolving the divide Q’b 9t Support, "]v-eﬁglrltwell.
control an '
between primary and community health Q’-eo choice atthe | Stay welfand
services - through coordination of q_){b 2 e wel
i i-discipli Person- with 1 or
commL.Jnlty mu.Itl dlsapllnarY teams, S Gl dgnined bl
clustering services around primary care o |ongtemmcare I ors
e
networks, and guaranteeing support to £ V *
people in care homes % 7 '4; " é%ﬁﬁ?&
e Enable frontline staff to work more v TehAba o | go-marbidides
closely together — planning our
workforce needs together, developing 6 4 Accessible ’g
case studies on front line cooperation, iy 5 RiTmRtvs Bl ppaet o
. Planni d
supporting shared records and IT and \}0 i e pets'gm:targ? &
. . / specialist and Q/Q
sharing estates wherever possible ’7(@ acute care e
g/‘a O
) S
e Ensure carers benefit from greater teo’ser : ide Qe‘
Vices to proV

recognition and support by improving
how we identify unpaid carers

e Improve join-up of services through community healthcare, primary, secondary and tertiary
healthcare (including specialist services, armed forces and their families, pharmaceutical services
and healthcare in the justice sector)

e Drive improvement by delivering our vision through collective oversight of quality and performance,
reconfiguration of clinical pathways, recommissioning of services and overseeing pooled budgets
and joint teams together (through the Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance). The ICA will bring
together officers from the relevant organisations and report regularly to the Health and Wellbeing
Board on progress against this plan andllzt)aeg@u 9 sformation programme as well as the Better
Care Plan.



Summary

Theme | Improving social Prevention and Localisation and Integration and working
mobility and early intervention connecting with together
tackling inequalities communities
Actions | Promote health in all | Lay the foundations | Support local Provide integrated services
to policies — including for good emotional | community action — | at key stages in a person’s
achieve | housing, wellbeing whilst through initiatives life —including later life
change | employment and young — by such as planning, end of life care,
planning. This will developing a neighbourhood and increasing the provision

include the
development of
sustainable
communities, whole
life housing and
walkable
neighbourhoods.

Support healthy
home settings — with
action on fuel
poverty,
worklessness,
mental health and
loneliness and by
increasing digital
inclusion

Give children the
best start in life —
with a focus on the
whole family, family
learning, parenting
advice, relationship
support, the first
1000 days/ early
years and
community health
services

Target outreach
activity — identifying
particular groups to
improve access to
services and health
outcomes and tackle
root causes

Improve access
through online
services and
community locations

coordinated
approach and
promoting a core
offer in schools
across Wiltshire

Encourage personal
responsibility across
the life course —in
all schools, with
working age adults
and for the elderly —
focusing on healthy
lifestyles, smoking
cessation, alcohol
and substance
misuse

Prevent ill health -
through increased
uptake of screening,
health checks and
immunisations as
well as tackling
antimicrobial
resistance through
optimising the use
of antibiotics

Adopt a proactive
population health
approach —rolling
this out to new
areas (such as
moderate frailty)
each year to enable
earlier detection
and intervention

Pag

collaboratives allied
to the development
of Primary Care
Networks, the
community mental
health model, area
board activity using
community area
JSNAs to inform
local action planning
and the allocation
and bidding for
wellbeing grants

Pilot community
conversations —
starting with
neighbourhoods in
Wiltshire that have
significant
deprivation and roll
these out gradually
across the county.

Consider the role
that procurement
can playin
delivering social
value and the way in
which organisations
can act as anchor
institutions

Embed Healthwatch
Wiltshire and VCS
voices in relevant
decision-making
structures; ensure
the results of
consultation are

er@licted in decision
papers

of personal budgets

Boost ‘out-of-hospital’ care,
dissolving the divide
between primary and
community health services -
through community multi-
disciplinary teams,
clustering services around
primary care networks, and
guaranteeing support to
people in care homes

Enable frontline staff to
work more closely together
— planning our workforce
needs together, developing
case studies on front line
cooperation, supporting
shared records and IT and
sharing estates wherever
possible

Ensure carers benefit from
greater recognition and
support by improving how
we identify unpaid carers

Improve join-up of services
including specialised
commissioning

Drive improvement through
collective oversight of
quality and performance,
reconfigurations and
recommissioning;
overseeing pooled budgets
and joint teams together —
including the ICA
transformation programme
and Better Care Plan




Health and wellbeing: strategic links

Waluntary and Community Sector Procurement Strategy
fouth Justice Plan

FACT Partnership Strategy Looked Voluntary and
After Children strategy SEND community sector Finance and

corporate services

Digital Strategy

Support Strategy Transitions Plan
Early Help
henital Health and wellbeing Joint MHS and Council:

Children and Young People's Blan

Integrated Care Strategy and Delivery Plan
Better Care Fund Plan
Inequalities strategy

Positive leisure time activities

Local skills Improvement Blan

Children’s services

Living and working
conditions

Health and care

B5W Care Model
Zuicide prevention

End of Life Care

26 obed

Local Plan and Local Transport Plan (LTFE) Mental Health and Wellbeing

UE 5hared Prosperity Fund Investment Plan and Autism Strategy Annual Public

i ivi Water and
economic development activity I Health Report
sanitation o ] ) ]
Wiltshire Climate Change Strategy and Education wiltshire Community Safety Partnership Strategy Domestic
Delivery Flan. NHS Sustainability Strategy Abuse and Sexual vielence Strategy Housing Strategy
Age, sex and Health care el o
Wiltshire Playing Fitch Strategy constitutional sarvices omelessness Strategy
Park and Open Spaces factors Sexuzal Health and Blood Borne viruses strategy Obesity
Blue and Green Etrategy
Infrastructures Agriculture Dementia Strategy
Housin Carers’ 5tra
air quality Strategy and f'—""fd g tegy
pr'l:ldl.l ction Leisure and Physical Activities, Ubraries and Culture

Licensing Policy

Adult and community

services

Wider determinants of health and wellbeing



Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2023-2032 consultation

The health and wellbeing of the people of Wiltshire is the highest priority for the Wiltshire
Health and Wellbeing Board. We are determined to achieve the best outcomes for our
population through good quality housing, education, employment and safe communities.
Our ambition is to enable and support everyone to flourish and live well. This strategy marks
a chapter in the continuous development for our Health and Wellbeing board. It has been
developed based upon the evidence of need and has enabled the board to focus on four
thematic areas where it can have its most impact ensuring everyone has access to the
opportunities and services that we would expect for our own friends and families.

To read the draft strategy please click here.

We would like your views on the current draft of the strategy. Your views will help to re-
shape the final draft.

The 2023 Health and Wellbeing strategy focuses on 4 key themes:

1. Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities
2. Prevention and early intervention

3. Localisation and connecting with communities

4

. Integration and working together

Do you agree with these 4 strategic areas?
Are there any changes you would suggest?

Are there any additional aims you feel should be included?

Page 95




Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities

In everything we do, we consider the impact of the action on social mobility and ask how we
can help to tackle the disparities in opportunities, experience, access and health outcomes
that exist within Wiltshire. We focus on the factors that have the greatest influence on
people’s health, such as ensuring good and secure homes and jobs.

Achieving change
We will:

e Promote health in all policies —including housing, employment and planning. This
will include the development of sustainable communities, whole life housing and
walkable neighbourhoods. The review of Wiltshire’s Local Plan and Local Transport
Plan is an important opportunity to deliver this.

e Support healthy home settings — with action on fuel poverty, helping people to find
work, mental health and loneliness and by increasing digital inclusion

e Give children the best start in life — with a focus on the whole family, family learning,
parenting advice, relationship support, the first 1000 days/ early years and
community health services

e Target outreach activity — identifying particular groups to improve health outcomes
and access to services (identifying and then focusing on several of these each year) -
work to tackle root causes, plan delivery and carry out evaluation.

e Improve access through online services, community locations and mobile services as
well as community diagnostic hubs.

Do you agree with how we will achieve change?

Are there any further methods to achieve change you would like added to the strategy?

Page 96




Prevention and early intervention
We take a long-term view, focusing on what is right for Wiltshire and invest in prevention

and early intervention to tackle problems before they get worse. We encourage personal
responsibility and have a whole life approach to planning and providing services for our
residents alongside this, aimed at improving outcomes in population health and care.

Achieving change
We will:

e lay the foundations for good emotional wellbeing whilst young — by developing a
coordinated approach and promoting a core offer in schools across Wiltshire
relevant to the challenges young people face (including new challenges such as social
media)

e Encourage personal responsibility across the life course —in all schools, with working
age adults and for the elderly — focusing on healthy lifestyles, smoking cessation,
alcohol and substance misuse

e Prevent ill health - through increased uptake of screening, health checks and
immunisations as well as ensuring the best use of antibiotics.

e Enable a healthy workforce through targeted preventative activity

e Adopt a proactive population health management approach — rolling this out to new
areas (such as management of moderate frailty) each year to enable earlier
detection and intervention

Do you agree with how we will achieve change?

Are there any further methods to achieve change you would like added to the strategy?

Page 97




Localisation and connecting with communities

We ensure our dialogue with communities is open, transparent and inclusive, in the right
place and at the right time so that the distinctive needs of local communities are met. We
enable stronger and resilient communities and support broader social and economic
development

Achieving change
We will:

e Support local community action — through initiatives such as neighbourhood
collaboratives allied to the development of Primary Care Networks, the community
mental health model, area board activity using community area JSNAs to inform local
action planning and the allocation and bidding for wellbeing grants

e Pilot community conversations — starting with neighbourhoods in Wiltshire that have
significant deprivation and roll these out gradually across the county.

e Consider the way in which we buy goods and services can deliver improved local job
opportunities (acting as ‘anchor’ institutions) and other wider benefits (social value)

e Embed Healthwatch Wiltshire and voluntary and community sector voices in
relevant decision-making structures and ensure the public voice is heard with
consultation results and co-production reflected in decision papers and relevant
attendance at the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Do you agree with how we will achieve change?

Are there any further methods to achieve change you would like added to the strategy?

Page 98




Working together and integration
We design and deliver our activities in partnership with service users, local communities and

public sector partners. We collectively consider how to integrate our work, get maximum
value for public sector spend and plan our use of the public sector estate together.

Provide integrated, personalised services at key stages in a person’s life — this will
include starting to complete later life planning with people in their early 60s (or
before that in more deprived areas) so that we are preparing for when they are
older, end of life care, and increasing the provision of personal budgets

Boost ‘out-of-hospital’ care, encouraging a ‘hospital without walls” model with
improved digital and local access to consultants, and dissolving the divide between
primary and community health services - through coordination of community multi-
disciplinary teams, clustering services around primary care networks, and
guaranteeing support to people in care homes

Enable frontline staff to work more closely together — planning our workforce needs
together, developing case studies on front line cooperation, supporting shared
records and IT and sharing estates wherever possible

Ensure carers benefit from greater recognition and support by improving how we
identify unpaid carers

Improve vertical integration of services through community healthcare, primary,
secondary and tertiary healthcare (including specialist services, armed forces and
their families, pharmaceutical services and healthcare in the justice sector)

Drive improvement by delivering our vision through collective oversight of quality
and performance, reconfiguration of clinical pathways, recommissioning of services
and overseeing pooled budgets and joint teams together (through the Wiltshire
Integrated Care Alliance). The ICA will bring together officers from the relevant
organisations and report regularly to the Health and Wellbeing Board on progress
against this plan and its own work programme as well as the Better Care Plan.

Do you agree with how we will achieve change?

Are there any further methods to achieve change you would like added to the strategy?

Are there any additional strategies or plans you feel should be added to the diagram at the

end?

Any other comments?

Page 99




This page is intentionally left blank



NHS

Bath and North East Somerset,

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board

Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance
Update for Health and Wellbeing Board

January 2023

Ssossadeasatsetadinss

TOT o6




Wiltshire ICA Development Update

The Wiltshire ICA :-

« Established its Partnership Committee — monthly meetings commenced in October. December’s meeting
was a seminar focussed on the outcomes of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and discussion around
next steps towards a revised transformation programme that centres on population health and wellbeing
inequalities. Further development sessions will be held to develop this programme further.

* Over the coming months we will refresh our Alliance priorities and work programme. Alliance Partners will

work together to improve and resolve challenges across our area — our plans will address concerns such as
& primary care access, working with our VCSE colleagues, the Cost of Living crisis, Workforce gaps, access to
8 services and reducing waiting times.

-

& The January Committee meeting (31st) will continue the development of supporting processes and then
structure itself around supporting readiness preparations for a Wiltshire SEND inspection and engagement
around our system Operating Plan response — bringing together the Joint Local Health and Wellbeing
Strategy and Integrated Care System Strategy aims, ambitions and delivery plan.

 The Committee is reviewing its sub-group and delivery structure to ensure direct connection between
developing strategies and the role of the Alliance in informing and delivering these ambitions.

* Work across our interim key delivery areas (see following slide) continues.



Interim Delivery Areas 22-23 — For Information

Operating Plan /Mandated Priorities

1. Financial sustainability —including joint decision making
around complex care funding and BCF funded schemes

2. Urgent Care and Flow Delivery — increased admission
avoidance activity, improved flow and D2A and delivery of
related schemes resulting in reduced NCTR and LOS, and
robust winter planning.

3. Ageing Well in Wiltshire — including implementation of
Virtual Wards, 2hr Urgent Response, Anticipatory care and
long term conditions recovery

4. Primary Care - National Priorities. Delivered via new
p@ry care DES including enhanced access for PCNs and

heglih inequalities.
)

5. Meéntal Health — Implementation of community services

fragrework continues, Annual Health check performance for
SMI across Wiltshire

6. LD&A - LD Road Map priorities, LD health checks building
on improvements delivered. Early Intervention Positive
Behavioural Support (PBS) for Primary Pupils in Special
Schools, supporting SEND agenda.

7. CYP and SEND —FACT delivery for Early Family help.
Focus on CYP emotional wellbeing. SEND strategy and
implement new SEND Health Advisors role.

8. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment refresh Oct 2022 to
inform the HWB Strategy update and ICS strategy
development

9. Governance and processes — establishing and embedding
these for the ICA.

Transformation 2022-23

Work prioritised as ICA partners — may be linked to other priorities

10. Connecting with our Communities - establish routes for
genuine co-production and decision making for our ICA way of
working to embed People and Communities strategy and
guidance

11. Neighbourhood Collaboratives — establish more collaboratives
(leading to 13 in total, with the Wiltshire learning forum fully
embedded) and connecting support for High Intensity Users.

12. Personalisation of Care for People at the end of their lives -
Revising non-clinical processes ensuring people’s needs are met
when and how they choose by re-defining decision and funding
pathways and reconfiguring service provision — moving to a Lead
Provider approach.

13. Ageing Well; transformation of End of Life Care, Anticipatory
Care - reviewing and embedding good practice, supporting PCNs
with new DES services, expand care home virtual MDTs and
completion of Optum project.

14. Urgent Care and Flow Improvement — programme of work to
improve ability to manage system flow for Wiltshire residents -,
Care Coordination, Domiciliary care provision.

15. Mental Health Community Services — Including Mental Health
Community Framework and LD and Autism — Pilot
Neighbourhood Sites in Warminster and Westbury will focus on
increasing strong rate of annual health checks and develop and
roll-out of Access Model across Wiltshire

16. Families and Children's Transformation work programme -
Establish a clear family help offer and single brand multi-agency
approach to include ICB/Wiltshire Police/ Wiltshire Council/FACT.

Towards 2023-2024

Towards our ambitions in how we work together

17. Development of response to Long Term Plan
refresh — ETA October publish date. December is
current required submission.

18. Building our Capability for Population Health
and Care — embedding a population health and
care led approach.

19. Refreshed approach to Transformation
planning — including taking a population heath
and care-led direction.

20. Alliance Development — continue developing our
ways of working and undertaking OD work.

21. Establish the Alliance Identity — developing and
establishing the ways we communicate and
engage with people working across our place,
sharing our work programme and encouraging
participation.

22. Re-launch the Professional Leadership
Network as the Wiltshire Collaborative —
bringing together learning from the
Neighbourhood Collaboratives and offering expert
advice and connection. Links with the Health and
Care Senate.

23. Community services transformation— guided by
our core Alliance principles and Place objectives,
working with partners at Place and across the
System to transform care models, improve
outcomes and optimise use of resources



NHS

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire

Integrated Care Board

Our Transformation Work Programme 2022-23
Update January 2023

sosssasss

-
Q
«Q
(9]
|_\
o
=~




Our Work Programme in 2022 / 2023

Governance is via the ICA Delivery Sub Groups to the Alliance Delivery Group

Programme Area and Work Outcome Progress
Families and Children Transformation (FACT) To develop a strong community of * Warminster and Westbury secondary schools have agreed their commitment to
) ) ) ) ) practice around community health engage/ There is a confidence that primary schools and early years will also engage

Focus o.n prevention ar.1d early |r.1tervent|on. Devglopmg a smg.le for CYP and their families so that and briefings are arranged for December 2022.
brand/ integrated services working at a community level offering Early they are able to access support * 29/11/22- Implementation Plan/ TOR and Strategy being revised and will be
Help/support for 0-19yrs. Pilot Neighbourhood Focus Sites in . . s : circulated in December 2022

i i i . more easily and rapidly within their
Warminster and Westbury will work together to deliver this e e * Draft outcomes framework being developed and further meetings taking place in
programme and establish a single brand multi-agency approach to ' December 2022
include ICB/Wiltshire Police/ Wiltshire Council /FACT. * Theory of Change workshops are planned with the Steering Group and Pilot

Operational Group
* Recruitment to remaining posts will take place during December and February

Mental %alth Community Services Framework People with LD will be offered an 3rd Sector Access Model:
Q o ) annual health check in a personalised Swindon PCN pilot currently on hold EQIA requested by AWP.
Long Texmn Plan's vision for a place-based community mental health and accessible way, meaning their PCLS pilots live now BSW.
model, $Ad how community services should modernise to offer health is maintained and emerging IG and Rio with executives at present
whole-pggson, whole-population health approaches, aligned with PCN concerns are identified at an early Swindon 3rd Sector and Rapid Response vehicle going live in Swindon 28.11.2022.
approac(l{' stage. SMI Register:
. . . Estates review of clinical and non-clinical space currently taking place.
The _overaII aims of this programme ar'e to improve mental health Wiltshire residents can expect Working group established (next meeting 29.11.2022), sub working groups to be
services and to ensure they are inclusive and cater for all ages. One .
seamless access to mental health established.

important factor is to grow the capability to delivery care closer to
home and reduce the need for patients to travel to seek care. The
programme also aims to facilitate early intervention for patients in

support and assurance that they will  Defining AWP health check offer.
be directed to the appropriate services Draft communication to GP about accessing First Options to complete health checks,

from the outset. out for comments.
order to support mental health well being. The primary role of this Older Adults:
group is to promote the integration of mental health services across DDR workstream established, TOR to be completed.
BSW. This programme seeks to develop services in a co-produced Dementia strategy Board to commence from Jan 2023.
way. This programme build on the ambitions of the NHSE 10 year 16-25 Pathway:
Mental Health Plan. Chairing structure to be confirmed.

TORS are completed and out for comments.




Programme Area and Work

End of Life Care Process Improvement — CHC Fast Track Model

The End of Life Care Model will provide a more efficient,
personalised care pathway to ensure that health and care needs
in the last 12 week of life are addressed and the individual is
allowed to die in the place of their choosing. Model aligns with
Palliative and End of Life Statutory Guidance for ICBs and NHS
Long Term Plan.

The proposal incorporates the eight recommendations cited in ‘A
Vision for Enhanced Palliative and End of Life care across BSW
ICS'.

It is proposed that a community based, clinically led team is
establistyed to provide care for those with continuing health and
care n&ds and a wish to die or be cared for at home, (including
Care H®mes).This care centred approach will incorporate the
needs gthe family and known carers.

AIIianc@Neighbourhood Collaboratives

work, this model supports neighbourhoods (PCN footprints) to
establish collaborative groups, working in a population-health
management focussed way to make changes aimed at closing
population health gaps and to co-produce and design solutions to
very local challenges. Fully established, 13 collaboratives would
be working across Wiltshire will a fully formed model of support,
leadership and networking to learn and share. A Wiltshire-Wide

all the Neighbourhood Collaboratives — celebrating success,
seeking and receiving support, and connecting into networks of
professionals.

Proposal is to bring 2 more ‘test and learn’ sites on in the next 12
months.

Born from the Neighbourhood Focus Site project and the Optum .

[ ]
Collaborative will offer a place to connect, learn and share across .

Improved experience of individuals and their
families

Better use of resources both colleagues and
funding.

Aligned with BSW strategy and care model
Wiltshire Alliance CHCFT model provides an early

identification system to personalise End of Life care

for those with a prognosis of less than 12 weeks.
People will have rapid access to appropriate and

safe care at the end of their lives, reducing waiting

time for discharge and enabling them to die in the
place of their choosing.

The recommendation to use Personal Health
Budgets will ensure there is greater choice in care
provider, and should personalise how care is
delivered.

Priority identified by Wiltshire Alliance
membership.

Alignment with local and national priorities,
strategies and primary care requirements.
Improved population health and

wellbeing outcomes through locally identified
priorities and integrated improvement work.
Longer term vision and change — sustainable and
meaningful

Making better use of resources

Supporting our workforce — effectiveness and
wellbeing

Professionals and communities have a way of
working together to design and implement
solutions to inequality gaps and to work through
delivery of key required changes

Progress

Business case presented to Exec Board on 12.12.22. Finance options
are currently being considered. Paper to be returned to the Board
with proposed finance options during January 2023 for finalisation.
Presentation to the VCSE Leadership Alliance on 15.12.22 received a
positive response. Alliance Leaders agreed to engage in conversations
with those leading work with stakeholders. Bereavement support was
identified as a key area for future support from the VCSE.

An Engagement Workshop with providers is being planned for
February 2023. Outcomes from the workshop will inform the final
business case which will be presented to the ICB Board in April 2023.
All dates are indicative according to internal governance routes.

Additional steps; Project Lead working with Procurement during Dec
‘22 & Jan '23 to create assurance processes required as part of the
mechanism to ensure finalisation of the model.

ICA-wide Steering Group launched — next session Feb 15t. Currently
designing the session with partners.

Melksham and BOA to begin Pathfinder project, adding to Trowbridge
(to relaunch)

Readiness Review completed — in trial

Induction Launch Programme nearing final design —to be launched
Feb / March.

Toolkit completed — currently in development to publish
Aiming to hold first Wiltshire Collaborative in March.

Comms plan developed — pending feedback from Comms Team.




Programme Area and Work

Urgent Care and Flow Improvement

Outcome

Wiltshire residents will benefit from

effective, responsive and integrated

Full participation in BSW-led work streams; Front door services, in-reach to
acute pathway, Referral processes, Data and information sharing, BSW
principles and Escalation process

Development and delivery of Locality Improvement Programme as a result of
the learning from the SAFER / MADE weeks in May & June 2022 and other
programmes of work.

services which are able to support
maximising capacity within our acute
trust partners. Ambulances will not
wait at ED front doors.

Progress

Improvement plan remains in place — focus however has been on responding
to system pressures. Some elements have been progressed via the 22/23 ASC
national funding- increased in-reach to acute trusts etc..

Currently reviewing P1 Home First Model to develop future model. Projects
to reduce Community Hospital and P2 D2A LOS / improve discharges have
commenced. Falls prevention currently rolling out.

Plan for future P2 care home model going to Partnership Committee 31/1/23.

Discharge Communications Project

Previous SAFER MADE events held across the Acute and Community Hospital
have highlighted a deficit in understanding of discharge pathways. Confusion
around what is on offer for BSW Wiltshire facing patients has impacted on the
timely transfer of care for those who are medically optimised. Therefore, an
Increase in knowledge of discharge pathways 1-3 is required, In order to
achieve {His it has been decided to develop a suite of resources which explain °

to patiads, their families, acute and community colleagues, what discharge
optionslcaE(e available, when medical optimisation has been achieved

o
~

Reduce the amount of time
clinicians spend following up on
discharge conversations.

Reduce confusion and CHOICE
delays.

Decrease the number of
complaints.

Improve the quality and
experience of the whole discharge
process for patients and carers.

A reduction in the length of stay in
hospital.

Better handovers of care to
community providers

This work is being led by Wiltshire on behalf of all three places.
Communications resources plan identified and work is under way to develop
and confirm the content. Funding potentially being sourced, - Proposal
currently pending approval.

Working with VCSE to reach out to the community to gather lived experiences.
Questionnaires have been shared with carers and those people living with LD
and Autism. Wiltshire CIL are contacting PW1 and PW?2 patients to arrange face
to face interviews. Discussions and comments have been shared via social
media. Citizen panel results have shown what information cares and patients
would want.

PW2/3 resource template developed and will be shared with group. Continuing
with development plan —aiming to hand to a media provider within 8 weeks if
funding is approved.

Ageing Well in Wiltshire

Ensure implementation of the Long-Term Plan ambitions in Wiltshire
Co-develop Virtual Ward model and ensure achievement of national
target for Wiltshire by Dec 2023 (40beds per 100k)

Pathway 2 Bed Model Implementation — revised framework and model
for commissioning care home beds.

Ensure 2hr Crisis Response fully functional across Wiltshire, maximising
effectiveness.

Progress Anticipatory Care roll-out across identified conditions — both
Virtual Wards and Care Home MDTs

National ‘must do’
requirements

Key to supporting system flow
Fits with BSW Care Model
Improved outcomes for our
population

Some schemes have moved to
‘BAU / Service Development’
but this is recognised as a high
priority area.

* Projects have moved to embedding phase.
* 2hour rapid response now fully meets national requirements
* Overnight Nursing — at full recruitment and full service commences Feb 2023
* Wiltshire Support at Home — recruitment continues (approx. 65% complete)
and block dom care contracts in place to support shortfall.
Virtual Ward open — proceeding as per plan to increase capacity.
Care Home Virtual MDTs now fully open and staffed, working closely with
care homes to avoid unnecessary admissions and maximise outcomes.




Enabling Workstreams

Programme Area and Work

Connecting With Our Communities

Will develop and implement the Wiltshire delivery of the People and
Communities Strategy. Directly links and supports the Neighbourhood
Collaborative Work as an enabler and supports the Council’s focus on improving
outcomes in areas of highest deprivation.

The CWOC group will have a ‘helicopter view’ of Alliance work and will provide a
mechanism to support and guide meaningful community engagement during
throughout development, initiation and delivery of our transformation and
service improvement work.

To be a yehicle for sharing learning and best practice so we grow our knowledge
and cap%)ility together.

Agreeirﬁnd role modelling our Alliance principles of engagement, advocating

and en
work.

ing good practice across all of our community voice and engagement

Outcome Progress

Decisions taken by the ICA will be  Emma Higgins and Amber Skyring confirmed sponsors for the programme
made following engagement and
discussion with our communities
of staff and residents.

Following successful workshop and engagement meetings, the CWOC group
will reconvene in January 2023 in a face to face session — this meeting will

e Our residents will know where and Poth agree the priority developments from the work done during the

h workshop and will develop a pilot model of engagement with Alliance
colleagues to test how our population feedback can be integrated in the
pathway of our workstreams.

how to ‘get involved’ to work wit
us on solving the things they tell
us are important to them and in
resolving our identified gaps.
Individuals and communities will
be able to directly shape and
engage with the work in their area
to improve health and wellbeing
gaps that matter to them.

Alliance Development

Broad work stream supporting the ongoing development of the Alliance. This
includes developing supporting resources and activities:-

Ongoing programme of ICA development and face to face meetings
Revising the Programme approach

Developing a communication and engagement plan with defined pathways
for sharing information and engagement

Ongoing relationship development across partners.

Continuing work with VCSE partners

Establishing the revised Alliance Delivery Group and Joint Committee
Re-launching the Professional Leadership Network meetings

We will work together in our The Joint Committee has been successfully established — December’s

Alliance according to the principles meeting was a Population Health and Care Inequalities seminar, triggering

we have agreed in a line with a our planning towards our priorities and transformation work programme.

continuous improvement focus.

Underpinning work to support the The Joint Committee is supported by a re-launched Alliance Delivery Group.

effective performance of our

Alliance and our

work programme.

Improved relationships and

integration leading to improved

use of resources, staff satisfaction A communications plan for the ICA is in development (to be reviewed by the

and outcomes for our population. Alliance Delivery Group and Partnership Committee) which will aim to
engage our colleagues and population in the work of the ICA.

Further ICA development sessions will be planned in Q4 and Q1 2023/24 to
establish the new transformation programme and to move further towards
the benefits of integrated Alliance working for our population.



NHS

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire

Integrated Care Board

Our Forward Plan
To be approved by the Alliance at the Partnership
Committee 31st January

sosssasss

o
Q

«Q
@
=
o
(o}




Principles of Our Refreshed Transformation Plan NHS

Bath and North East Somerset,

Swindon and Wiltshire
Integrated Care Board

These principles have arisen through our development work to date and will feed into our
transformation and delivery planning:-

» Takes a population health management approach to addressing need.
 Prioritises prevention and early intervention — shifting resources to this approach.
* Jakes a holistic Alliance approach and considers wider determinants of health
Q. . . . g
* Aligns to statutory partner guidance and priorities
. Eﬁ\ligns to ICS Strategy and Delivery Plan and Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing strategy.
» Works across organisational and contractual boundaries to “do the right thing”

* Values what our communities value — co-producing solutions wherever possible and taking an asset based
approach to developments.

« Enables use of resources in a joint way, genuinely integrating our colleague workforce.
* |dentifies best practice here and elsewhere and strives for excellence

* Recognises that change is longer term and effort must be sustained

 Makes best use of technology and digital enablers

» Takes a continues improvement approach and a ‘test and change’ environment supported by Alliance
leadership.



Wiltshire ICA Forward View — into 2023

ICA Work Programme

Neighbourhood
Collaboratives — Pathfinder
Launch. Connecting with Our
Communities (CWOCQ)
relaunch meeting

Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment

Findings shared with ICA
partners — starts informing
strategy and transformation
plans.

NHS Delivery Plan

Guidance release late
December — impacts on ICA
priorities.

Partnership Committee
Meeting

Focus on Population
health and wellbeing
inequalities

ADG meets x 2 month

December

ICA Work Programme
Neighbourhood
Collaboratives — group

development sessions start.
CWOC - first advisory session

ICA Priorities

Development work to
identify and align priorities

across strategies and partner

objectives.

Draft Local Health and
Wellbeing Strategy

Full draft will come to

Partnership Committee for

discussion.

Partnership Committee
Meeting

Focus on SEND Inspection
Readiness and System
Planning focus

ADG meets x 2 month

January

ICA Work Programme

Collaboratives and CWOC
continue programme plan.

Leaning from Pathfinder site

shared. First Wiltshire
Collaborative meeting.

ICA Development Session
Outcome — to determine
priority ambitions for new
Transformation Work
Programme and inform Place
Delivery Plan.

NHS Delivery Plan

Deadline for Draft Submission —
13t February. Committee will
review.

Partnership Committee
Meeting

Mental Health Deep Dive,
Alliance and System Delivery
Plans

ADG meets x 2 month

February

ICA Transformation Plan

Draft Version to come to
Partnership Committee to
review and potentially approve.

Integrated Care Strategy

Final Version Completed.
Overseen by Integrated Care
Partnership

NHS Delivery Plan

Final Submission Deadline 1st
April — Partnership Committee
will review in March.

Partnership Committee
Meeting

ICA Transformation & Delivery
Plan — Next Steps

Ageing Well Deep Dive

Focus on Community
Engagement

ADG meets x 2 month



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

26" January 2023

Subject: Update on use of the BCF Adult Social Care Discharge Fund.

Executive Summary

The Wiltshire locality has been granted approval for proposed schemes to
support hospital discharges during the winter period December 2022- March
2023. The ‘Adult Social Care Discharge Funding’ of £4,265,220 is a pooled
fund, governed under the existing Section 75 agreement.

NHS England guidance is clear that funds are to be prioritised on those
schemes most likely to increase the efficiency of hospital discharges and
support acute settings during a time of extreme pressure.

The schemes within Wiltshire locality were developed in partnership with health
colleagues and most schemes are now mobilised and demonstrating an
increase in capacity to support discharges. The schemes are varied and take a
multi-faceted approach to supporting discharges, including staff retention, the
purchase of additional capacity, work to release existing roles to focus on
discharge etc.

We will continue to monitor outcomes and spend through the required fortnightly
reporting to NHS England.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board:
i) Notes the allocation, spend and regular monitoring of the BCF winter
discharge funds.

Reason for Proposal

On the 18" of November, NHS England announced additional funding to
support the health system over the winter period. The following funds were
allocated and transferred into a pooling arrangement, governed by our existing
section 75 agreement.

LA Allocation £1,519,220
ICB Allocation £2,746,000
Total £4.265,220

Page 113



The funding can be used flexibly on interventions that best enable the discharge
of patients from hospital. It is prioritised for spend on approaches that are most
effective at freeing up the maximum number of hospital beds and identifies
discharge to assess (D2A) and home care as effective options for discharging

more people in a safe and timely manner.

The schemes were agreed by health and council colleagues and submitted
according to NHS England guidance on the 16" ° December. They have

recently been approved (see appendix A).

The following schemes are approved.

Scheme Funding
In-reach services to acute hospitals (2) £626,000
Front line staff incentive schemes £778,000
Additional social care practitioners in £109,000
reablement service

Complex needs SPOT beds £1,323,000
Care market provider support £500,000
Mental health flow coordination £178,000
Increase capacity in Intensive Enablement | £59,000
Service

VCS offer and carers support £85,000
Share Lives placements £ 75,000
End-of-life bed provision £89,000
Care Act Assessment backlog £375,000
Project coordination £45,000

These schemes meet the spending guidance across a range of criteria,
including supporting a consistent workforce in services supporting or delivering
discharge services, creating additional capacity through the purchase of care,
specific mental health and other complex needs provision and includes the
voluntary sector in the delivery of some schemes.

Reporting

We are required to report spend and outcomes on a fortnightly basis. The first
submission was made on the 6™ of January, covering a reporting period of the
23 December 2022 — 4" January 2023. Although impacted by the holiday period
we reported a spend of just over £240,000. Additional resulting capacity

included:
= 860 hours of domiciliary care
= 14 care home beds
= 19 intermediate care beds

Recruitment of a Shared Lives officer

The next report is due on the 20" °f January, covering the period 5" — 18"

January.

Monitoring

The BCF commissioning team continue to work closely with health colleagues in
the mobilisation of the mental health flow coordination scheme and are working

Page 114




with operational colleagues to ensure existing schemes are working as
effectively as possible.

Schemes are providing regular evidence and data about outcomes and this is
useful not just for the national returns but also provides opportunity to test new
ideas for efficiencies or to increase capacity. The insight from this will inform
future BCF planning.

Helen Mullinger
Batter Care Fund Manager
Wiltshire Council

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



NHS

England

NHS England
Wellington House
133-155 Waterloo Road
London,

SE1 8UG

E-mail:
england.pcpc@nhs.net

To: (by email)

ClIr Richard Clewer, Chair, Wiltshire Health and
Wellbeing Board

Sue Harriman, Accountable Officer, Integrated
Care Board

Terence Herbert, Chief Executive, Wiltshire
Council

09 January 2023

Dear Colleagues,

BETTER CARE FUND 2022-23

Thank you for submitting your Better Care Fund (BCF) plan for regional assurance
and approval. We recognise that the BCF has again presented challenges in preparing
plans at a late stage and at pace and we are grateful for your commitment in providing
your agreed plan.

| am pleased to let you know that, following the assurance process, your plan has been
classified as ‘Approved’. The relevant NHS funding can therefore now be formally
released subject to the funding being used in accordance with your final approved
plan, and in accordance with the conditions set out in the BCF policy framework for
2022-23 and the BCF planning requirements for 2022-23, including the transfer of
funds into a pooling arrangement governed by a Section 75 agreement.

Page 117


mailto:england.pcpc@nhs.net

NHS

England

You will also be aware of the recent announcement regarding the Adult Social Care
Discharge Fund and the conditions requiring that the funding allocations be pooled
into the BCF. This additional funding has been made available to help you reduce
delays in discharge from hospitals and support those who are fit to leave hospital so
that they can continue their recovery in the most appropriate location. As you already
do with the BCF, it is crucial that health and care systems and providers work together
to meet the care needs of people and make the best use of this additional funding.

The Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) and the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) grant
are paid directly to local authorities via a grant by the Department of Levelling Up,
Housing and Communities. Local authorities are also receiving additional grant
allocations through the Adult Social Care Discharge Fund. These grants are pooled
together with the NHS BCF allocations and are subject to grant conditions set out in
their respective grant determinations, as specified in the BCF planning requirements.

Your Section 75 agreement covering the whole of the BCF plan including the Adult
Social Care Discharge Fund monies should be developed and agreed by all parties
by the end of January 2023.

Ongoing support and oversight with regards to the spending of BCF funding will
continue to be led by your local Better Care Manager (BCM). Following the assurance
process, we are asking all BCMs to feed back to local systems where the assurance
process identified areas for improvement in plans and share where systems may
benefit from conversations with other areas. BCMs will also review the Capacity and
Demand plans that areas were asked to complete to identify support needs and inform
requirements for future years. Nationally, we will also be reflecting on what the data
tells us and what more we need to consider in the future.

Local systems must remain compliant with the conditions set out in the BCF policy
framework for 2022-23 and the BCF planning requirements for 2022-23 (including the
addendum published for the Adult Social Care Hospital Discharge Fund). Where an
area is not compliant with one or more conditions of the BCF, or if the funds are not
being utilised in accordance with the agreed plan or are being utilised in a way which
creates a risk that the conditions will not be met, then the BCF team, in consultation
with national partners, may make a recommendation to initiate the intervention and
escalation process as outlined in the BCF planning requirements 2022-23. Any
intervention will be proportionate to the risk or issue identified. The intervention and
escalation process is outlined in the BCF Planning Requirements 2022-23.

Reporting on the overall BCF programme for 2022-23 will be limited to an End of Year
return. However, there are additional planning and reporting requirements for the Adult

Page 118



NHS

England

Social Care Discharge Fund which must be complied with including the submission of
the planning template and fortnightly reporting. Further information on End of Year
reporting will be confirmed in due course.

Once again, thank you for your work and best wishes with implementation and ongoing
delivery.

Yours sincerely,

Dr Amanda Doyle OBE, MRCGP

National Director, Primary Care and Community Services, NHS England

Copy (by email) to:

Elizabeth O’'Mahony, Regional Director, NHS England

James Sanderson, Director of Community Health Services and Senior Responsible
Officer for the Better Care Fund

Jennifer Keane, National Director, Intermediate Care and Rehabilitation, NHS England
Rosie Seymour, Programme Director, Better Care Fund Team, Better Care Fund
Programme, NHS England

Stephen Corton, Better Care Manager, Better Care Fund Programme, NHS England

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

26 January 2023

Subject: Armed Forces Covenant Duty

Executive Summary

The Armed Forces Covenant is essentially a promise by the nation that the
Armed Forces Community should be treated fairly and face no disadvantage
when accessing public and commercial services, with special provision made in
appropriate cases for those who have sacrificed the most. A new statutory duty
commenced in autumn 2022 for healthcare, housing and education providers to
have due regard to the Covenant and statutory guidance has been published to
inform this.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board

1) notes the information presented on the implications of the new Armed
Forces Covenant Duty;,

2) notes Wiltshire Council’'s assessment of how it is meeting its
commitments as a signatory to the Covenant and to the new Duty
(appendix 1);

3) receives an update from the ICB on NHS activity to deliver the Duty;

4) agrees that partners continue to work together to consider how the Duty
impacts on their services.

Reason for Proposal

To ensure that Board members are aware of the Covenant Duty and its
implementation in Wiltshire.

Lucy Townsend Fiona Slevin-Brown
Corporate Director for People Place Director — Wiltshire
Wiltshire Council BSW Integrated Care Board

Page 121



Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board
26 January 2023

Subject: Armed Forces Covenant Duty

Purpose of Report

1.

The report seeks to:

a. Provide information to the Health & Wellbeing Board on the implications of
the new Armed Forces Covenant Duty;

b. Outline Wiltshire Council’s plans to assess how it is meeting the Duty, and to
highlight any changes that may be required to strengthen service; and

c. Invite partners to consider how the Duty will impact on their services.

Relevance to the Health & Wellbeing Strategy

2.

The current Strategy highlights tackling inequalities as one of its four priorities.
The new Duty will support the partners to consider how policies and services can
be designed to ensure no disadvantage and improve outcomes for members of
the Armed Forces Community.

Background

3.

There is a new requirement for public bodies to have “due regard” to the
Covenant. The Armed Forces Act 2021 introduced a new requirement for some
public bodies, including the NHS and local authorities, to pay due regard to the
principles of the Covenant when carrying out specific public functions in the
areas of housing, healthcare and education.

The requirement commenced in the autumn and the government is planning to
review the operation of the new duty across the UK in its 2023 Covenant annual
report.

The new Duty builds upon the extensive work in response to the Armed Forces
Covenant, launched in 2011, which encouraged local communities to support the
service community and enhance understanding and awareness among the
public of issues affecting the Armed Forces Community. Wiltshire Council,
supported by its partners, was an early signatory of the Covenant, re-signing it
most recently in June 2022.

Page 122



6. The Wiltshire Council area is home to around a fifth of the British Army. There
are currently 19,000 serving personnel across all branches of the Armed Forces,
19,000 dependents and approximately 31,378 veterans in Wiltshire (more than
any other council area).

Main Considerations

7. The Armed Forces Covenant is essentially a promise by the nation that the
Armed Forces Community should be treated fairly and face no disadvantage
when accessing public and commercial services, with special provision made in
appropriate cases for those who have sacrificed the most. Since 2011,
organisations have been encouraged to sign up voluntarily to this pledge to
reduce disadvantage for the Community.

8. In 2021, the Armed Forces Act of 2006 was amended to enhance this promise
for certain bodies so that it became a legal obligation, namely:

When a specified body exercises a relevant function, it must have due regard
to: (a) the unique obligations of, and sacrifices made by, the Armed Forces;
(b) the principle that it is desirable to remove disadvantages arising for
Service people from membership, or former membership, of the Armed
Forces, and (c) the principle that special provision for Service people may be
justified by the effects on such people of membership, or former membership,
of the Armed Forces.

9. To support implementation of the new Duty, the Ministry of Defence (MOD)
published Statutory Guidance which details how the new law applies and gives
best practice examples for relevant authorities to consider.

10. The bodies specified in the Act, in England, are as follows:

e Local authorities Governing bodies of maintained schools and further
education institutions

e Proprietors of Academies
e Non-maintained special schools and special post-16 institutions

e NHS England, integrated care boards, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation
Trusts

11. The relevant functions of these bodies in scope of the Duty, include the provision
of services in the following main areas:

1 Office for National Statistics (ONS), released 10 November 2022, ONS website, statistical bulletin, UK armed
forces veterans, England and Wales: Census 2021

Page 123


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1116148/Armed_Forces_Covenant_Duty_Statutory_Guidance.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/armedforcescommunity/bulletins/ukarmedforcesveteransenglandandwales/census2021
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/armedforcescommunity/bulletins/ukarmedforcesveteransenglandandwales/census2021

Healthcare

e Provision of services
e Planning and funding
e Co-operation between bodies and professionals

These healthcare functions are within scope of the Duty in the
following settings:

e NHS Primary Care services, including general practice,
community pharmacies, NHS dental, NHS optometry
services and public health screening services.

e NHS Secondary Care services, including urgent and
emergency care, hospital and community services,
specialist care, mental health services, and additional
needs services (as applicable).

e Local authority-delivered healthcare services, including
sexual health services and drug and alcohol misuse
services.

Education

Admissions

Educational attainment and curriculum

Child wellbeing

Transport

Attendance

Additional needs support

Use of Service Pupil Premium funding (England only)

These education functions are within scope of the Duty in
compulsory education settings, that is, primary, secondary,
and, for England only, compulsory further education. The Duty
does not cover nursery (early years education), higher
education, or other voluntary adult education settings.

Housing

Allocations policy for social housing
Tenancy strategies (England only)
Homelessness

Disabled Facilities Grants

12. The statutory guidance provides a range of best practice examples for each of

these areas.

13. Private or third sector organisations are not in scope of the Duty, but the relevant
services they provide will do so if they deliver under contract from a body that is.

14. The Act does not specify how a body must meet its obligations under the Duty,
but the guidance suggests that bodies should have the appropriate mechanisms.

15. The Duty applies to the following members of the Armed Forces Community,
collectively defined in the Act as ‘service people’:

Page 124




a. Members of the regular forces and the reserve forces;

Members of British overseas territory forces who are subject to Service

law;

c. Former members of any of Her Majesty’s forces who are ordinarily
resident in the UK; and,

d. Relevant family members.

=3

Proposals

16. The Board is asked:

1) To note the information presented on the implications of the new Armed
Forces Covenant Duty;,

2) To note Wiltshire Council’s assessment of how it is meeting its commitments
as a signatory to the Covenant and to the new Duty (appendix 1);

3) To receive an update presentation from the ICB on NHS activity to deliver the
Duty;

4) To agree that partners continue to work together to consider how the Duty will
impact on their services.

Lucy Townsend, Corporate Director for People, Wiltshire Council
Fiona Slevin-Brown, Place Director for Wiltshire, BSW ICB

Report Author: Will Oulton, Corporate Support Manager,
william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 01225 713935

13 January 2022

Appendices — Wiltshire Council Assessment

Background Papers

None

Page 125


mailto:william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk

9¢T obed

Appendix 1 — Wiltshire Council assessment of delivery on Covenant commitments and statutory duty

Preface

The National Armed Forces Covenant is a promise from the nation that those who serve or have served in the armed forces, and their families, are treated
fairly, and not disadvantaged as a result of their service. Every council in the country has pledged that they will uphold the national Covenant through a
local Community Covenant pledge. Newly introduced legislation will recognise their Service and ensure we as a Local Authority, do all we can to ensure they
are treated fairly and not disadvantaged in their day-to-day lives. Wiltshire Council reaffirmed its pledge and the specific actions it will take at a signing
ceremony with partners in June 2022.

Members of the armed forces community include:

. currently serving in the armed forces - either regular or reserve
. a veteran who served in the armed forces - either regular or reserve
. a member of the Merchant Navy who served on a commercial vessel in support of

legally defined UK military operations
. a dependant - for example, the partner or child of someone who's currently serving
in the armed forces, a veteran or a member of the Merchant Navy.

This legislation proposes a responsibility for us to have due regard to the principles of the Armed Forces Covenant (in a similar way to the consideration of
the 9 protected groups in the Equality Act)

It applies to a specified list of public bodies when carrying out specific public functions in the areas of housing, healthcare and education. It requires those
who are subject to it to consciously consider the Armed Forces Community, and the principles of the Covenant, when developing policy and making
decisions in specified policy areas.

The Duty remains with the bodies responsible for the specific public functions, and it will ultimately be their responsibility to ensure that any organisations
they partner with in the delivery of relevant functions are carrying out their work in accordance with the new Duty. The Covenant Duty enters into Force in
Autumn 2022 with a government review in mid-2023.

This document assesses Wiltshire Council’s implementation of covenant commitments on a rolling basis, together with the implementation of the Covenant
Duty in public service delivery in Wiltshire.


https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/news/wiltshire-pledges-commitment-to-working-together-with-its-armed-forces
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/news/wiltshire-pledges-commitment-to-working-together-with-its-armed-forces

/2T abed

Promoting the Armed Forces

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Promoting our work, activities and events
through our own digital and social media
channels as well as working with the press

Wiltshire Council has invested in Military Civilian Integration web pages aimed
at providing information to the military community on: health, housing,
welfare, schools, finance and employment opportunities and nurseries, as well
as informing all residents of the military presence, plans and programmes that
are underway.

Comms (Sean
Chacksfield)

Publishing our Covenant pledges on a
dedicated Covenant section/page on our
website and sharing best practice with other
organisations

Armed Forces Covenant - Wiltshire Council

We are spreading best practice to other LAs (leading on various LGA initiatives,
such as the close involvement of LAs in MOD estate disposal plans and processes)
and through a SW network.

Exec Office / Comms
(Sean Chacksfield)

Promoting the fact that we are an Armed
Forces friendly organisation, to our staff,

We continue to staff exhibition stands at events and highlight the military
focused programmes that the council is involved in, for example, Higher

Recruitment (Georgi
Bliha/Deborah

contractors, customers, suppliers and wider Futures, The Enterprise Network and University Technology Colleges. Hughes) /
public. Procurement
Continuing to support the Military Civilian Military Civilian Integration Board meets quarterly and its objectives are Exec Office

Integration partnership or similar engagement
structures in Wiltshire.

published on our website.

Following the completion of the Army Rebasing programme, the MCI Board will
review its objections in 2023. The Leader and Director of Place continue to
strengthen ties through visits to bases.

Following on from the recommendations of the LGA Peer Challenge, the Council
will explore other opportunities for build on external partnership working,
including with the Military and Civilian partners.



https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/article/939/Armed-Forces-Covenant#:~:text=The%20Wiltshire%20covenant%20in%20communities&text=The%20aim%20of%20the%20covenant,affecting%20the%20Armed%20Forces%20Community.
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/army-basing-mci-partnership

8¢T obed

Veterans

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Working with and advertising vacancies
through Career Transition Partnership (CTP),
as well as advertising widely in the Armed
Forces community, to ensure employment
opportunities are made available to veterans

Wiltshire Council has supported, promoted and participated in all the South West
Transition Fairs and British Forces Resettlement Service (BFRS) events where
businesses and service providers offer advice and support to service personnel
planning their futures following their military career.

Recruitment (Georgi
Bliha/Deborah Hughes)

Welcoming Applications from and
guaranteeing interviews with veterans who
meet the essential criteria in the job
specification

We have a new military ‘landing page’ on our recruitment website designed for
military leavers and families

Recruitment (Georgi
Bliha/Deborah Hughes)
and HR Policy (Leire
Fernandez)

Recognising military skills and qualifications in
our recruitment and selection process and
providing support for start up enterprises and
self build initiatives.

The Enterprise Network (TEN) is in place, a SWLEP-wide programme led by
Wiltshire Council in partnership with Swindon Borough Council and private
partners, to encourage start-up enterprises which particularly targets the
military community as part of the programme.

Considering bespoke support required for female veterans

Recruitment (Georgi
Bliha/Deborah Hughes)

Victoria Moloney




6¢T abed

Service Spouses and Partners

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Supporting the employment of Service spouses
and partners by welcoming applications from
spouses/partners who meet the criteria in the
job specifications

Wiltshire Council had the Defence Employer Recognition Scheme Gold Award
renewed recently for pledging, demonstrating and advocating support to
Defence and the Armed Forces Community and aligning their values with the
Armed Forces Covenant.

Recruitment (Georgi
Bliha/Deborah Hughes)
and HR Policy (Gemma
Morrison)

Exec Office
Partnering with and advertising vacancies on HR Policy (Gemma
Forces Families Jobs and Recruit for Spouses, Morrison)
as well as advertising widely within the Armed
Forces community. Supporting bespoke skills Support the ‘Higher Futures Programme’ which the military community piloted
programmes. for learners. Mandy Timbrell

Endeavouring to offer a degree of flexibility in
granting leave for services spouses and
partners before, during and after a partner’s
deployment

Policies provide for career breaks for those whose partners have been
deployed; and there is a social group for military spouses.

HR Policy (Gemma
Morrison)




0¢T abed

Reserves

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Supporting our employees who are already
members of the Reserve Force.

Annual Armed Forces Reserves Day is next taking place 21°* June 2023

HR Staff Engagement
(Holly Powell)

Granting an additional 10 days paid leave to
our Reservist employees to support any
mobilisation or annual training they may have

We currently offer 2 weeks paid leave with additional time being unpaid) for
reservists to attend training under our Reserve Forces policy.

HR Policy (Gemma
Morrison)

Supporting any mobilisations and deployment

The policy guarantees employment protection during any periods of
deployment.

HR Policy (Gemma
Morrison)



https://www.armedforcesday.org.uk/reserves-day/
https://wiltshirecouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/HRDirect/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FHRDirect%2FShared%20Documents%2FAppraisals%2FAnnual%20leave%20and%20time%20off%2Ftime%20off%2FReserve%20Forces%20policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FHRDirect%2FShared%20Documents%2FAppraisals%2FAnnual%20leave%20and%20time%20off%2Ftime%20off

TET abed

Cadet Organisations

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Supporting our employees who are volunteer
leaders in military cadet organisations

Seeking further identification of staff involved in cadet organisations and survey
of their needs

HR Policy (Gemma
Morrison)

Granting an additional 10 days paid leave to
our CFAV employees to attend annual training
camps and courses

Wiltshire Council policy for cadet instructors gives two extra weeks’ paid leave a
year to attend annual training camp.

HR Policy (Gemma
Morrison)

Actively encouraging members of staff to

Volunteering policy in place

HR Policy (Gemma

become volunteer leaders in cadet Morrison)
organisations
Recognising the benefits of employing WEX programme HR

cadets/ex-cadets within the workforce




ZsT obed

National Events and Charities

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Supporting Armed Forces Day, Reserves Day,
the Poppy Appeal Day and Remembrance
activities

Annual remembrance promoted and observed

Comms (Sean
Chacksfield)

Supporting Armed Forces charities with
fundraising and supporting staff who
volunteer to assist as well as engagement with
their programmes

Armed Forces Outreach Van continues to attend a range of events as outlined
on the Outreach Calendar - Mobile Outreach - Forces Connect South West

HR Policy (Gemma
Morrison)

Outreach Officer (Andy
Hadrick)

Publicising Covenant commitments through
our websites and other communications,
setting out how we will seek to honour them
and inviting feedback from the Service
community and our customers on how we are
doing.

Armed Forces Covenant - Wiltshire Council

Comms (Sean
Chacksfield)

Providing input as required to the UK’s Annual
Report on the Covenant and the operation of
the duty for public bodies to have due regard

to the covenant.

First full Annual Report covering the implementation of the duty is expected in

late 2023.

Exec Office



https://www.forcesconnectsouthwest.org.uk/mobile-outreach/outreach-calendar
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/article/939/Armed-Forces-Covenant#:~:text=The%20Wiltshire%20covenant%20in%20communities&text=The%20aim%20of%20the%20covenant,affecting%20the%20Armed%20Forces%20Community.

ceT abed

Children, Young People and Education

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Review schools admission policies for council
schools so that families without a permanent
address could apply for schools of their choice
if they could demonstrate they were due to be
posted to a unit in Wiltshire.

Policy is in place

Considering engaging with the youth parliament on support required for service
pupils

Debbie Clare

Engage school academies with their own
admission policies and wider support for
service children in school

A range of best practice material can be shared at Heads Forums including:

o SCiP Alliance

o Supporting Service Children in School: An Organisational Improvement
Framework, iCeGS, University of Derby | SCiP Alliance

o The SCiP Alliance Hub Network | SCiP Alliance

o SCiP Alliance Map

o Use of Service Pupil Premium

Schools can be also encouraged to report on their use of Service Pupil Premium
spend.

Helean Hughes

Consider Armed Forces Friendly School
accreditation

Drawing on WLGA criteria for this is being considered
Armed Forces friendly schools

Helean Hughes

Gather information on pupils and looked after
children from the service community e.g. on
attainment and outcomes.

It may be possible to work with universities on longitudinal cohort studies on
educational outcomes and this will be explored. This can also be considered as
part of the data gathering on SPP and through smaller cohorts such as LAC.

Helean Hughes
Kathryn Davis (LAC)

Ensure that educational organisations are
aware of their responsibilities in accordance
with the duties e.g. that children are not
disadvantaged from after school activities if
they have started late; or attendance policies
apply fairly to families.

This can be considered through Heads Forums.

Helean Hughes



https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.scipalliance.org%2Fthriving-lives-toolkit&data=05%7C01%7CShahnaz.Begum%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C194f753f4d994b617f1f08da6bd2a786%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637940849732724686%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=bsITk3%2FQiTs6aionkALDQ2pd68jD5K3Nxj5YiWrVqR4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.scipalliance.org%2Fresearch%2Fsupporting-service-children-in-school-an-organisational-improvement-framework-icegs-university-of-derby&data=05%7C01%7CShahnaz.Begum%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C194f753f4d994b617f1f08da6bd2a786%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637940849732724686%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3Ie33DdhIRJpUasn%2FMaRtTWMynV8vLVfbFTNq3J4Rbk%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.scipalliance.org%2Fresearch%2Fsupporting-service-children-in-school-an-organisational-improvement-framework-icegs-university-of-derby&data=05%7C01%7CShahnaz.Begum%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C194f753f4d994b617f1f08da6bd2a786%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637940849732724686%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3Ie33DdhIRJpUasn%2FMaRtTWMynV8vLVfbFTNq3J4Rbk%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.scipalliance.org%2Fhubs%2Fthe-scip-alliance-hub-network&data=05%7C01%7CShahnaz.Begum%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C194f753f4d994b617f1f08da6bd2a786%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637940849732724686%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WIZDDBz%2FAOIPPSey01K4xMpWnc2DpZgAJOks0SVsc1k%3D&reserved=0
https://www.scipalliance.org/map
https://www.scipalliance.org/assets/files/SCP-Alliance-data-Briefing-FINAL-ONLINE.pdf
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.localgov.co.uk%2FWelsh-councils-launch-new-armed-forces-status-%2F54433&data=05%7C01%7CShahnaz.Begum%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C194f753f4d994b617f1f08da6bd2a786%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637940849732724686%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=04m91uSKEZq%2Bv0Ccj%2BXOdCVnOx0WJevb%2FT%2FR3lBl2Rk%3D&reserved=0

yeT obed

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Ensure that relevant children and young
people have access to Health and Wellbeing
services, and that those services are aware of
their needs.

This will continue to be addressed through our commissioning processes with the
NHS on children’s community health services.

Commissioning/
Mel Nicolau

Confirm that there is a transfer process which
ensures that appropriate safeguarding
information is shared between parties when
children and families move, and that
professionals are aware of the relevant
resources.

We have a robust process in place that ensures that children that subject a
Child Protection Plans there is a transfer process which ensures that
appropriate safeguarding information is shared between parties when children
and families move. Further work to discuss how professionals can improve their
understanding of the community and individual's needs through better data
monitoring and professional development,

Jen Salter/ Fiona
Hayward

Ensure that school transport provision does
not disadvantage families who have had to
move due to military service.

There is no disadvantage to military families in applying under our education
transport policy.

Jason Salter



https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/article/2109/Applying-for-transport
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/article/2109/Applying-for-transport

GeT obed

Housing

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Review local connection policy

Policy ensures there is no disadvantage in accessing social housing if they are
unable to demonstrate a local connection (applies if they are a serving
member, or Veteran who have been out of the military for 5 years or less,
bereaved spouses, and existing or former reservists suffering from injury,
illness or disability attributable to their service (this is now a requirement for
all local housing authorities as a result of the Covenant but was adopted early
in Wiltshire).

Wiltshire Council Allocations Policy - Wiltshire (homes4wiltshire.co.uk)

Housing — Nicole Smith

Support Self-Build projects

The Alabaré Veterans Self-Build project is being supported by housing
developer Lovell, affordable housing provider Stonewater and Wiltshire
Council who have recently set up the project training veterans to build their
own homes at Drummond Park in Wiltshire. The new five-year scheme will
create 15 new homes for individuals and veteran families.

Ensure that the Council is aware of who is When a resident approaches our services for housing advice or support the Nicole Smith
using their housing services who are members | advisor would always ask if they or an immediate family member is from the
of the Armed Forces Community to help to Armed Forces as the options available are different due to the large number
improve the way in which their needs are met. | of charitable and other services which are dedicated to meet the needs of this
community
Ensure that the Tenancy Strategy is reviewed The Tenancy Strategy was adopted in 2016 and it hasn’t been updated since. Guy Tribbeck

to take into account the Duty.

All housing providers are required to develop tenancy policies that would
consider the type of tenancies they will offer and how they will take into
consideration individual needs. As an authority all our stock is allocated in
line with the allocation policy in which ensures no disadvantage to those from
the Armed Forces by not requiring them to have a local connection to
Wiltshire



https://www.homes4wiltshire.co.uk/content/AboutHomes4Wiltshire/WiltshireCouncilAllocationsPolicy
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-wiltshire-61735152

o¢T abed

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Ensure that homeless services and advice are | If a member of the Armed Forces approaches Wiltshire Council as homeless or | Nicole Smith
tailored to take account of the needs of the threatened with homelessness they would be referred to our dedicated
Community. Armed Forces Housing Solutions Officer to ensure that consistent and robust
support and advice is provided which is tailored to meet the needs of this
community
Ensure that Disable Facilities Grant policy and | When processing DFGs we fully disregard war pensions when carrying out Nicole Smith

processes do not disadvantage the
Community.

financial assessments as well as compensation payments for injuries which
ensures they are not disadvantage for receiving these payments.




/€T abed

Health

Wiltshire Council will work with its partners on the Health and Wellbeing Board to support the delivery of due regard to the duty

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Engage with Healthwatch Wiltshire on the
experience of those serving and their families

Healthwatch Wiltshire could be asked to consider a similar report to this:
What matters to veterans? | Healthwatch

Commissioning team

commissioning healthcare commissioning for
military families

Engage with NHS BSW ICS on elective care Schedule item for future update at Health and Wellbeing Board NHS/ VHCA
waiting lists and dentist waiting lists for Note NHS Forward View guidance.

military families

Engage with NHSE on specialised Schedule item for future update at Health and Wellbeing Board NHS/ VHCA

Ensure that Joint Strategy Needs Assessment
is taking account of the needs of the Armed
Forces Community

The recent Wiltshire JSNA does not specifically cover the military as it is a
Wiltshire overview. Specifics HNAs undertaken by PH do consider the military,
published HNAs can be found here. There are plans to undertake a new HNA
which will have a focus on military populations - timing and elements to be
confirmed - but there is an opportunity to undertake further analysis on the
recent census data that included a question on veterans for the first time.

Kate Blackburn

Ensure that there is a mechanism for Health
Care provision to be reviewed when the needs
of the Armed Forces Community changes,
including during deployment/rebasing
changes, and that the impact of any service
changes on the community is considered

The NHS across BSW and particularly in Wiltshire has an enduring relationship
with the Armed Forces and has historically partnered with them to support
and facilitate Forces colleagues and their families during deployment and
rebasing activities — this includes the significant period of change and
repatriation over the last 10 years.

In response to evolving community needs, the NHS has recently opened a
shared health centre with the Military at Larkhill and will continue to explore
options for joint and shared working.

The Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance is building a network of Neighbourhood
Collaboratives to bring people together across communities to respond to
local community needs and population health gaps — colleagues and

Kate Blackburn (for HNAs)
with Fiona Slevin-Brown
(BSW ICB)



https://nds.healthwatch.co.uk/reports-library/what-matters-veterans
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Healthcare-for-the-Armed-Forces-community-forward-view-March-2021.pdf
https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/jsna/
https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/library/
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/first-joint-mod-and-nhs-primary-healthcare-facility-opens-in-wiltshire

g¢T obed

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

community representatives from the Armed Forces will be key partners in
these groups.

Additionally, the Military is invited to join the ‘Connecting with Our
Communities’ group (first meeting in February) which aims to ensure
community views are reflected in service development and redesign from the
ground up.

Ensure that health services are collecting data
on members of the Community who are
accessing services to better understand their
issues.

Deep dives could be undertaken with primary care partners drawing on HNA
data and census data to understand identification gaps.

New population health tools and systems (currently rolling out) allow partners
across Wiltshire to understand population needs, inequalities and unmet
needs. Whilst this does not yet specifically allow for identification of military
service personnel or their families, this is logged as an area of development in
the ongoing programme. The tools can however be used to investigate areas
of concern or specific need for military communities.

GP practices, community services and hospitals all collect data in relation to
the military community — this is used to inform service development and
planning. NHS services will be supported in ensuring optimal of snomed codes
and recording if those encountered in primary care are veterans or serving.

Kate Blackburn with Fiona
Slevin-Brown

Ensure that healthcare professionals are
aware of treatment requirements and the
service provision available for the Community

Schedule item for future update at Health and Wellbeing Board

ICB approval of an Armed Forces Single Point of Access (SPOA) is expected
6/2/23. This will run as a pilot (with support from national funding) from 1%
March 2023 to August 2024. The pilot runs across BSW but will be centred in
Wiltshire. This SPOA will have dedicated staff who will work to identify and
support military service colleagues as they navigate through the health system
to progress their pathway. The SPOA will also inform training needs for
healthcare staff about armed forces issues.

NHS/ VHCA
Fiona Slevin-Brown



https://www.e-lfh.org.uk/programmes/nhs-healthcare-for-the-armed-forces/

6ST abed

Actions

Commentary

Action owner

Consider where it is appropriate to offer
priority access e.g. due to particular stress.

Schedule item for future update at Health and Wellbeing Board

There are existing links with Military services to ensure appropriate
prioritisation and access to services based on clinical need — however this
action will be fully reviewed to determine if additional steps are needed.

NHS/ VHCA
Fiona Slevin-Brown

Ensure that members of the Community are
not disadvantaged due to geographical
moves: e.g. on waiting lists; or maintaining
existing relationships with Healthcare
professionals

Schedule item for future update at Health and Wellbeing Board

There are existing links with Military services to ensure the community are not

disadvantaged as a result of transfers or location changes — however this
action will be fully reviewed to determine if additional steps are needed.

NHS/ VHCA
Fiona Slevin-Brown

Ensure that the Community has access to
information about the provision of services
including bespoke/tailored services.

Schedule item for future update at Health and Wellbeing Board

There are existing links with Military services to distribute and share
information — however this action will be fully reviewed to determine if
additional steps are needed.

NHS/ VHCA
Fiona Slevin-Brown

Ensure that data is transferred between
services to ensure that there are no
delays/breaks in provision e.g. where some
moves geographically, or leaves the military.

Schedule item for future update at Health and Wellbeing Board

There are existing links with Military services to ensure that data is
transferred accurately and immediately — however this action will be fully
reviewed to determine if additional steps are needed.

NHS/ VHCA
Fiona Slevin-Brown

Ensure that all services are acting on any
health data on the provision of services to the
Forces Community to ensure that barriers are
reduced

Schedule item for future update at Health and Wellbeing Board

Public Health Commissioned services are:

Sexual Health; Substance misuse; Domestic Abuse; Health Improvement
Coaches; Health Visiting PH nurses; Health Checks; Warm and Safe; Specialist
Health in Pregnancy; Baby Steps; Specialist weight management services;
Health Movers; FUEL

Evidence on service use is considered as part of the commissioning process.

NHS/ VHCA

Kate Blackburn/
Hayley Morgan




ot T obed

Other service considerations — Social care

Actions Commentary Action owner
Support for fostering A targeted campaign promoting fostering in military families has resulted in an | Jen Salter
increase in the number of military families choosing to foster in Wiltshire.
Previously, fostering in the military had been low due to the transient nature of
military life.
Adult Social Care assessments In adult social care, Wiltshire fully disregard war pensions in social care financial | Emma Legg

assessments. There is also already a disregard in place for Guaranteed Income
Payments (which compensate for future loss of earnings upon discharge); and
compensation payments for injuries can also not be taken into account in the
means testing (although the services they provide and any unmet need can be
considered in the social care eligibility assessment, however).

When there are cases where care and support needs are not factored into
consideration properly in the compensation payment, the result can be a need
to fund a large package of care for that person, should they be ordinarily
resident in Wiltshire. This has happened on several occasions historically and
leads to budget pressures in adult social care as a consequence, as they are
unplanned costs. We continue to raise this issue with government.




Agenda Item 11

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

26 January 2023

Subject: Public health workforce campaign

Executive Summary

In November 2021 the chairs of the Health and Wellbeing Board requested
options to inspire the organisations sitting on the board to implement a
workforce wellbeing campaign. With a workforce of c45,000 the prospect of
influencing the health and wellbeing agenda on such a scale presents a unique
and exciting opportunity. Good health and wellbeing are essential to
successful, sustainable workplaces.

With an initial focus on mental health, organisations were asked at the
December 2021 Health and Wellbeing Board to make a commitment to enable
a healthy workforce through improved wellbeing and resilience. This report
provides an update on progress.

Original Proposal
It was recommended to the Board that:

I.  Each organisation agrees to collectively enable a healthy workforce

through improved wellbeing and increased resilience

II.  Each organisation to implement a suitable and targeted intervention that
addresses health and wellbeing in their workforce

lll.  Each organisation to monitor and report back on progress in 12 months’
time

IV. Each organisation, and the Health and Wellbeing Board itself, to sign up
to the Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health, a shared
commitment by signatories to work together to prevent mental health
problems and promote good mental health.

Outcomes
Nine organisations provided a progress update with a combined workforce of

€.28,000. Multiple interventions supporting mental health have been
implemented with a clear focus on providing training and support for staff.

Kate Blackburn
Director of Public Health
Wiltshire Council

Page 141



Wiltshire Council

Health and Wellbeing Board

26 January 2023

Subject: Public health workforce campaign

Purpose of Report

1.

To provide an update to the Health and Wellbeing Board on the
approaches taken by the organisations represented on the Board to
improving their workforce health and wellbeing and to share good practice.

Relevance to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy

2.

Employment is a primary determinant of health. Increasing the quality of
work helps support prevention and early intervention, improving social
mobility and tackling inequalities, which are key guiding themes of the
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Background

3.

In November 2021 the Chairs of the Health and Wellbeing Board
requested some options to inspire the organisations who sit on the board
to implement a workforce wellbeing campaign. The purpose of this paper
is to provide an update on progress, share examples of good practice and
provide recommendations for continued commitment to the workplace
health agenda.

Good health and wellbeing are essential to successful, sustainable
workplaces. Protecting and improving the health and wellbeing of our
employees remains critical to the health and economic wellbeing of our
population. The impacts of COVID-19 on health and wellbeing continue to
be felt, with the cost-of-living crisis further highlighting the need for
workers health to remain a top priority.

In December 2021 member organisations were asked to focus on
enabling a healthy workforce through improved wellbeing and increased
resilience. Evidence indicates that if individuals do not have good mental
health, wellbeing and resilience then interventions or programmes to
improve physical health will very often not succeed.

At the December 2021 meeting the board were asked to consider the
following recommendations:

Each organisation agrees to enable a healthy workforce through
improved wellbeing and increased resilience

Each organisation to implement a suitable and targeted intervention
that addresses health and wellbeing in their workforce

Page 142



Each organisation to monitor and report back on progress in 12
months’ time

Each organisation, and the Health and Wellbeing Board itself, to sign
up to the Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health, a shared
commitment by signatories to work together to prevent mental health
problems and promote good mental health.

All members agreed to implement the above recommendations and in
accordance with section Ill. monitor and report back on progress in 12
months’ time.

Progress

8.

10.

11.

There are eleven organisations represented on the Health and Wellbeing
Board, and a request for an update on progress was made prior to
publication of this report. A brief summary of the interventions
implemented by the various organisations can been in in appendix 1. It
should be noted that Healthwatch Wiltshire only have four part-time
employees and therefore were deemed exempt.

Nine organisations provided a progress update with a combined workforce
of ¢28,000 staff.

There were a number of mental health focussed interventions
implemented across the organisations, as recommended, with the training
of staff in Mental Health First Aid being one of the most common
approaches taken. Mental Health First Aid is an internationally recognised
training course, designed to teach people how to spot the signs and
symptoms of mental ill health and provide help on a first aid basis.

Other interventions included the introduction of mental health advocates
and mediators, suicide first aid training and also supporting health and
wellbeing conversations among staff. As well as written updates a number
of organisations provided further information on their respective
programmes by way of submitting audio/video clips, which are to be
shared with the Board on 26 January.

Discussion

12.

13.

Data from the most recent Joint Strategic Needs Assessment provides an
up-to-date picture on current and future health and wellbeing needs of
people living in Wiltshire. The prevalence of common mental health
disorders is rising in Wiltshire. In 2020/21, almost a quarter (24.6%) of
people aged 16+ in the county were estimated to have higher levels of
anxiety, representing a 6% rise compared to the previous year.

The pandemic and its associated social restrictions are likely to have
impacted on mental health and socio-economic pressures arising from the
current cost of living crisis could see the proportion of people experiencing
anxiety rise further, including members of the workforce.

Page 143


https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/jsna/

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Trends in mental ill health demonstrate that the focus on improved
wellbeing and increased resilience amongst the workforce was, and
continues to be, vital in creating successful and sustainable workplaces. If
individuals do not have good mental health, wellbeing and resilience then
interventions or programmes to improve physical health will very often not
succeed.

Having already shown great application when implementing workplace
interventions, it is felt that this momentum should be harnessed and
continued. To that end organisations represented on the Board should
continue interventions that support mental wellbeing and also implement
interventions that enhance physical health in employees.

People in employment are in worse health than previously. Compared to
2019, people in employment are 13% more likely to have a health
condition and 30% more likely to have multiple health conditions?.

The recently published JSNA indicates that our 65+ population currently
represents just over a fifth of the overall population but by 2040 this age
group will make up nearly a third. As people live longer they will be
expected to work for longer yet are likely to do so with one or multiple
health conditions, a key barrier to gaining employment and for staying in
work.

Based on the most recent JSNA data for Wiltshire there are several
lifestyle risk factors that drive poor health, which could be prevented and
keep the workforce healthier and for longer. These most commonly relate
to smoking, obesity and alcohol consumption:

e Smoking prevalence in adults — 12.0%
o Staff who smoke at work are 33% more likely to be absent from
work than non-smokers?

e Adults classified as overweight or obese — 61.8%
o Excess weight can bring physical, social, emotional and
psychosocial problems, leading to onset of preventable long-
term illness, stigma, discrimination and reduced life expectancy?

e Adult population drinking more than 14 units per week — 21.3%
o Estimated that alcohol misuse costs English economy £7.3
billion each year?

Interventions addressing physical health could include smoking cessation
programmes for routine and manual workers, signing up to the NHS

LIPPR, 2022 — Getting Better? Health and the labour market
https://www.ippr.org/research/publications/getting-better-health-and-labour-market

2 BITC, 2018 — Drugs, alcohol and tobacco: A toolkit for employers https://www.bitc.org.uk/toolkit/drugs-
alcohol-and-tobacco-a-toolkit-for-employers/

3 BITC, 2018 — Physical activity, healthy eating and healthier weight: A toolkit for employers
https://www.bitc.org.uk/toolkit/physical-activity-healthy-eating-and-healthier-weight-a-toolkit-for-

employers/

Page 144


https://www.ippr.org/research/publications/getting-better-health-and-labour-market
https://www.bitc.org.uk/toolkit/drugs-alcohol-and-tobacco-a-toolkit-for-employers/
https://www.bitc.org.uk/toolkit/drugs-alcohol-and-tobacco-a-toolkit-for-employers/
https://www.bitc.org.uk/toolkit/physical-activity-healthy-eating-and-healthier-weight-a-toolkit-for-employers/
https://www.bitc.org.uk/toolkit/physical-activity-healthy-eating-and-healthier-weight-a-toolkit-for-employers/

20.

Smokefree Pledge, encouraging staff to reduce alcohol consumption or
increase physical activity.

Employment is one of the five ways organisations act as anchor
institutions, these being large, public sector organisations that are unlikely
to relocate and have a significant stake in a geographical area*. Anchor
workforce strategies involve thinking not only about how organisations can
grow local workforce supply and widen access to employment for local
communities, but also how to be a better employer and place to build a
career for more people. Such strategies consider widening workforce
participation, building the future workforce and being a good employer,
which includes supporting [) fair pay and conditions of employment, 11)
health and wellbeing and IIl) professional development and career
progression®.

Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health

21.

Whilst the Health and Wellbeing Board is not a signatory to date several
organisations continue to implement interventions recommended within
the Concordat. Work to sign up the Board will continue and as a priority
OHID are looking to get all newly created integrated care systems to sign
up with further details being provided later this year.

Next Steps

22.

23.

Good health and wellbeing remain essential to successful, sustainable
workplaces. The health and wellbeing of any workforce is an
organisational priority and even more so given the impact of COVID-19
and the cost-of-living crisis on society. A focus on both mental and
physical health in the workplace is paramount. As such each organisation
represented on the Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to maintain its
commitment to this important agenda.

Each organisation should commit to the following:

Continue to invest in workplace health

Continue to build on the excellent work done thus far on supporting
mental health in the workplace

Confirm what their focus on physical health will be i.e. smoking
cessation, promoting healthy eating, increasing physical activity etc.
Increase employment opportunities by adopting the anchor institute
principles

Support the Board in signing up to the Prevention Concordat for Better
Mental Health

Kate Blackburn
Director of Public Health
Wiltshire Council

4 The Health Foundation, 2019. Building healthier communities: the role of the NHS as an anchor
institution. Building healthier communities: the role of the NHS as an anchor institution - The Health
Foundation

Page 145


https://ash.org.uk/resources/smokefree-nhs/the-nhs-smokefree-pledge
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/building-healthier-communities-role-of-nhs-as-anchor-institution
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/building-healthier-communities-role-of-nhs-as-anchor-institution
https://www.health.org.uk/publications/reports/building-healthier-communities-role-of-nhs-as-anchor-institution

Report Authors:
Public Health

Page 146



/T abed

Appendix 1

Organisation No of Intervention Outcome(s)
employees
AWP 5,000 - As HWB is unique to each Multiple but include:
individual we took a multi- - Creation of BSW Wellbeing Matters Team, specialist staff
faceted approach across AWP support hub, providing clinical assessments to staff
to impact as many people as experiencing mental health issues — 115 individual referrals
possible. received across BSW region, 40 requests from teams/services
to provide support/training
BSW ICB 512 - Wellbeing check in as part of - 24 staff trained in MHFA
performance review process
- Mental Health First Aid (MHFA)
training
- Joined RUH Menopause
Forum
Dorset & Wiltshire | 1,361 - The co-ordination of Wellbeing | - Via successful attendance we will look to gain feedback and

Fire and Rescue
Service

Workshops as offered by the
Firefighters Charity for
dissemination to all fire service
staff

liaise with the Firefighters Charity to take up their offer of
providing bespoke training sessions for staff and managers so
it is embedded within our own learning & development
programme

Great Western

5,500 approx

- Mental Health First Aid training
- Suicide First Aid training

- Health and Wellbeing
Conversations

- 256 staff trained in MHFA

- 64 staff trained in Suicide First Aid

- 59 staff trained in facilitating a health and wellbeing
conversation

HCRG Care No response
Group received
Healthwatch 4 (parttime) | N/A N/A

Wiltshire




81T abed

RUH

6,000 approx

- Supporting our colleagues —
MH and SFA training

- Supporting staff though trauma
—TriM

- MHFA trained = 158 (32 on waiting list)

- Suicide First Aid Training = 16 (16 booked onto February
course, 42 on waiting list for future courses) Approximately 80
attended open access suicide awareness sessions.

- H&WBC facilitators trained = 153

- 62 TRIM referrals relating to 454 individual staff members.

- Trained 7 new TRIM practitioners, 44 TRiM supporters, 3
TRiIM managers plus provided TRiM refresher training for 7
practitioners

Salisbury FT

4,043

- The introduction of Wellbeing
Conversations across the Trust

- The roll out of wellbeing conversations across the Trust is an
ongoing initiative and as such is not yet concluded

- To date, we have provided training for managers in carrying
out wellbeing conversations, and in addition individuals with
expertise in wellbeing have been involved in holding wellbeing
conversations to directly support areas where the managers
are unable to carry them out for operational or other reasons

- The intention is to provide further training courses and
support further roll out across the Trust in 2023

Wiltshire Council

4,884

- Introduction of Mental Health
Advocates

- 35 members of staff trained QNUK Level 2 Award in Mental
Health at Work

Wiltshire Health
and Care

1,200

- Workplace Mediation

- Fully trained new 2 mediators

Wiltshire Police

No response
received




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Integrated Care Strategy Update
	Integrated Care Strategy Slides
	BSW Integrated Care Strategy - Summary Briefing Slides for BSW Partners
	Integrated Care Strategy Update

	7 Draft Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy for consultation
	Draft Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy Report
	Draft Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy Consultation Questions

	8 Integrated Care Alliance Work Programme
	9 Better Care Plan
	Better Care Fund Approval Letter

	10 Military Covenant
	11 Workforce Health Campaign

